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OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

~ &8 I

FEEK PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

BERABEROBRAFT(AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
RADEHEMBAR([AER])E “Group”) is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu
ENEAERBEER THER - light, medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose
FAECEAFABE K RE % vehicles and diesel and petrol engines. All of the production facilities
e s - AR HMAHRED of the Group are located in the People’s Republic of China (the
eEASBEAEERELEE “PRC") and substantially all the sales of the Group are also made
EREAREMBA(FHE]) - &K in the PRC. The Group had export sales to Japan during the vyear,
EE BRI 8 E MIEP B which accounted for approximately 0.33% of the Group's turnover

EoAXFEAN  AEBEIAEMRA for the year.
AEPEE HeBHAER2
FREEFEH033% °

NEBIAE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
A—E—RF+-_A=+—8" The Group had 2,842 employees as at 31 December 2015.

AREBEKT AEAE2842A -

2 BEiR5EMR M AR 2 A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2015 for your review.

2015 RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company sold 57,744
trucks and vehicles, an increase of 4.3% over 55,338 trucks and
vehicles sold last year. Revenue was RMB5.5 billion, a decrease
of 5.1% over RMB5.8 billion as recorded last year. Profit after tax
was RMB485 million, an increase of 8.1% over RMB449 million as
recorded last year.

I.  REVIEW OF OPERATION

Affected by the slowdown in macroeconomic demands, the
changes in the mode of development, the enhancement in
industry structures, the drop in demographic dividend and the
tightening of environmental constraints; the growth of the
Chinese economy slowed down and the sales of commercial
vehicles continued to decline. Following its market oriented
strategy, the Company strived to expand the market and
achieved relatively good results through market oriented
technology innovation, and the enhancement of the quality of
the basic management and the quality of the staff.

Annual Report 2015 3 3
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Building the innovative “large-scale marketing, large-
scale development, large scale production, large
scale logistics” systems

1.  Achieve growth in the sales of finished vehicles
amid adverse market trend through building the
innovative large-scale marketing system, and
continuously intensify its basic management
in sales and marketing and enhance its
competitiveness in sales and marketing.

1) introduce commercial plans and marketing operation
standards that complies with market development
needs on a timely basis; 2) through in-depth research
in the region market environment, characteristics
of product and users, so as to commence the
building of sales and marketing network with the
aim to lay a strong basis in marketing management
and enhance the quality of marketing network.

B 82 A Al Ak 30/ F B A E
30th anniversary ceremony of the Company

4 BAERM AR LD A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.

28R ER
Participating in the Shanghai International Car Show
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

To expand the market with customers as the
core, grasping the emerging opportunities in
the changing market with the aim to develop
new customers from emerging industries such
as large-scale electronic commerce operators,
and continue to consolidate and strengthen the
cooperative partnership with clients from traditional
industries and major clients; 3) step up the efforts
in promoting the corporate products and image in
order to enhance the awareness and goodwill of
the Qingling products.

Building the innovative large-scale development
system

1) develop vehicles with expanded specifications
and enhanced configurations to satisfy customer
demand, and complete the development of the
improvement of the I-type pick-up trucks and
commence production; 2) develop city logistics
vehicles used mainly for carrying goods in order
to resolve the issue of the last km in city logistics;
3) complete the development of new products
such as 600P wide-body, 600P/700P disc-brake,
100P stack trucks, chassis of F fire trucks and the
chassis of various model of vehicles for transporting
hazardous products.

Annual Report 2015 3 5
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Building the innovative large-scale production
system

1) optimize the production organization structure
and implement the integration of various resources.
Implement the integration of the workshops of
interior decoration with overall installment, and
primary pressing vehicles with secondary pressing
vehicles in sequential order, and optimize the
production organization and allocation of manpower;
2) promote the improvement in craftsmanship and
gradually transform the mode of production from
traditional to “intelligent” method.

Building the innovative large-scale logistics
system

1) implement standardized management in accordance
with the principle of “easy-to-use, quality-guaranteed,
optimized space usage”; 2) improve the equipment
and packaging used for logistics in order to enhance
the quality assurance of the logistics segment.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

(2)

(3)

Strengthen internal control and increase corporate
competitiveness

1) focus on the consolidation and reform of quality
management, conscientiously implement the gathering
of information regarding quality-related issues, dig out
the core reason and carry out reforms, and implement
quality control throughout the process; 2) strengthen the
supporting systems and enhance its capability; 3) reduce
the production costs, optimize the process for purchase
management and reduce the purchasing costs, refine the
management system in investment, tendering, budgeting
and in the usage of significant sum of funds in order to
achieve stronger financial cost management; 4) actively
promote informatization construction, consolidate the
foundation for management and enhance the efficiency
in management.

Further reinforce the cooperation with foreign parties
and enhance the level of cooperation with foreign
sectors

Through concerted efforts, the Chinese and Japanese
sides consolidated the foundation for VC46 heavy-
duty trucks and further optimized its specification and
configuration. The development for VC46 stake trucks,
6x2 dual front axles vehicles, reinforced chassis, chassis
for vehicles transporting hazardous products, chassis for
fire trucks are completed. Meanwhile, the development
and introduction of the new Isuzu heavy-duty trucks have
commenced in order to speed up its launching into the
market.

Annual Report 2015 3§ 7
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

At this moment, the development trend of the Chinese
economy, the dynamic of market demand and competition for
commercial vehicles, the inherent advantages and weakness
of Qingling, are all undergoing profound changes. All these
require an enterprise to focus its attention on the market, to
review and reform its internal structure and system as well
as management, to mobilize all positive elements to serve
the market and support the development of the market. Our
focuses in 2016 are as follows:

Establish the operating philosophy of “Casting a

classic, Leading the value”; with the market as its
focus, enhance the corporates’ overall competitiveness
through strengthening its execution ability, continuously
consolidating the four major systems, implementing
enhanced, improved and pragmatic marketing and
development strategies, and engaging in concise, precise

and optimized production and logistics.

Further improve and enhance the standard of
management, strengthen the management in costs,
quality and purchase, and manage the enterprise in
accordance with laws and regulations.

Continue to place great emphasis in team building and
standardize the training and management of our staff in
order to enhance staff quality.

Enhance the general ranking in fuel consumption and
emissions to National V, and plan in advance to reach
National VI.

Looking ahead of the year 2016, the Company will make
persistent efforts to take the bull by its horns and will be able
to overcome all difficulties and bring satisfactory returns to our
investors.

18 March 2016

SRE R A R 2 F Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Mr. HE Yong, aged 53, has been an executive director of the
Company, the chairman, a member and the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of the remuneration
committee since 28 May 2015. He graduated from Hunan University
in the PRC, majoring in Civil Engineering. Mr. HE holds a bachelor
degree in Engineering and an executive master degree in Business
Administration. He is also a senior engineer. Mr. HE has over 25
years of experience in automobiles industry. He worked at Sichuan
Automobile Factory from 1984 to 2000, during which, he served
in a number of positions including the deputy manager. From
2000 to 2007, he worked at Chongging Heavy Vehicle Group Co.,
Ltd., during which, he served in a number of positions including
the general manager. He also worked as the general manager
and chairman of Chongging Hongyan Motor Co. Ltd. from 2005
to 2006 and 2005 to 2007 respectively. From 2007 to 2010, Mr.
HE was the executive director and general manager of Chongging
Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. (a company incorporated in the PRC,
the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), Stock Code: 2722) and the
chairman of Chongging Cummins Engine Co., Ltd.. From September
2010 to August 2014, he was the standing member of the district
committee, the deputy secretary of the district people’s government
party leadership group, the managing district vice head and the
principal of the district administration school of Jiulongpo District,
Chongaing, the PRC. Mr. HE joined Qingling Group in August
2014 and is now working as the general manager and a director of
Qingling Motors (Group) Company Limited (“Qingling Group”).

Annual Report 2015 £ 9
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI, aged 58, has been an executive director
of the Company and the vice chairman since 28 May 2015 and has
been the general manager of the Company since 16 November
2015. He graduated from the Faculty of Law of Keio University,
Japan. He joined Isuzu in April 1981 and has been working at Isuzu
Motors Limited (“Isuzu”) for over 30 years. He served in a number
of positions, including the manager in charge of the domestic
service improvement office, the manager in charge of the domestic
management office, the manager in charge of the domestic
planning office, the head of the business planning department, the
merchandise manager of MKT office and CV project, the head of the
project management department, the executive officer in charge of
the project management department and cost planning department,
the executive officer in charge of the eighth and ninth divisions
of the overseas business and the assistant to the head of the PT
business department. Mr. MAEGAKI is currently the managing
executive officer of Isuzu and the assistant to the fourth division
of oversea business department of Isuzu and has been the vice
chairman of Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co., Ltd. from 2010
to 2014.

Mr. GAO Jianmin, aged 56, has been an executive director of the
Company since 28 April 1994. Mr. GAO is currently an executive
director and managing director of Silver Grant International
Industries Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 171) and an executive director of
Jiangxi Copper Company Limited (the shares of which are listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 358). Mr. GAO has
more than 28 years of experience in finance, industrial investment
and development. He holds a Bachelor degree in engineering from
Qinghua University.

10 B#R5ERMH AR 2 T Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Makoto TANAKA, aged 64, has been an executive director of
the Company since 17 June 2008. Mr. TANAKA is also the general
manager of the Company. Mr. TANAKA graduated from Nihon
University. He joined Isuzu in April 1975. He served in different
positions in Isuzu from December 1994 to April 2005, including
supervisor of assembly team of Large Size Automobiles Technology
Department, director of production coordination department of
production technology planning office and director of PT public
works department. He was president of Isuzu Engine Manufacturing
(Thailand) Co. Ltd. during the period from May 2005 to April 2007.
He returned to Isuzu in April 2007 and served as PT production
executive director. Mr. TANAKA resigned as the general manager of
the Company on 16 November 2015.

Mr. Naoto HAKAMATA, aged 59, has been an executive director
of the Company since 28 May 2015. He graduated from the
Faculty of Commerce of Otaru University of Commerce, Japan. Mr.
HAKAMATA joined Isuzu in 1980 and worked successively in the
overseas business department, corporate management department,
business development department and overall planning department
in Isuzu. From 2007, he served as an officer of Isuzu responsible
for planning, finance, operation, business development and project
management. He served as the president and representative
director of Isuzu Network Company Limited (L +# #8485k &4t)
since 2009. He served as a managing executive director of Isuzu
in 2011 and served as a head of the business department and
business planning department, an assistant to the head of the first
business department and after-sales marketing department and the
chairman and representative director of Isuzu Motors Asia Limited
(A+8M/AERAR). Mr. HAKAMATA has working experience
in corporate operating strategy, business planning and financial
management for many years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZENG Jianjiang, aged 54, has been an executive director
of the Company since 30 October 2013. He is also the deputy
general manager of the Company. Mr. ZENG has been appointed
as the company secretary of the Company responsible for the PRC
affairs since 15 June 2015. Mr. ZENG holds a bachelor's degree
and received education in Geography Faculty of Southwest China
Normal University. He previously worked at the Education Office
and the League Committee of Sichuan Vinylon Factory under
Sinopec (PU)I| 4 fE4 ) and the Leading Group Office of the Three
Gorges Project of the People’s Government of Chongging. Starting
from 1988, Mr. Zeng also held positions as an officer-in-chief of
the Industrial Bureau of the Planning Committee of Chongging,
the Director of the Automobile Equipment Bureau of the Economic
and Information Technology Commission of Chongging, and the
Director of the Leading Group Office of the Automobile Industry of
the People’s Government of Chongqing (EET ARBN/THE T ¥4
E/NAHPTAE). Mr. ZENG has worked at the departments in charge
of the economy and automobile industry of the government for
over 20 years, and was responsible for the planning, restructuring
and positioning of automobile, motorcycle and autoparts industry
of Chongging, and the dispatch and coordination of economic
operations for many vyears. He is familiar with the automobile,
motorcycle and autoparts industry. He has led the management
of the planning, introduction, development and launch of
important projects of Chongging’s automobile, motorcycle and
autoparts industry and has a relatively extensive experience in the
management of the automobile industry. Mr. ZENG is currently the
deputy general manager of Qingling Group, and also the chairman of
the board of Chongaing Qingling Plastic Co., Ltd. (EEE%ER AR
~a]), a member of Qingling Group.

Mr. LI Juxing, aged 50, has been an executive director of the
Company since 28 May 2015. He graduated from Harbin Institute
of Technology, majoring in casting. He holds a bachelor degree of
engineering and is a senior engineer. Mr. LI successively served as
a technician of a foundry of Chongging Automobile Manufacturing
Plant (EEREEE4), a head of the biotechnology department,
a head of the quality department, a deputy chief engineer and a
deputy general manager of Chongqging Qingling Casting Company
Limited (EEEREEARAR) since July 1990. He became
a deputy chief engineer of Qingling Group since 2005 and

12 B#5ERH AR T Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

concurrently served as the general managers of Chongging Qingling
Aluminium Casting Co. Ltd. (EEE##EiRHR 2 7)) and Chongging
Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. (EEERBEER A F]). Since 2010, he
has been working as a deputy general manager of Qingling Group
and he also serves as the vice chairman of Isuzu Qingling (Chong
Qing) Autoparts Co., Ltd, the chairman of Chongging Qingling
Forging Co. Ltd. and a director of Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine
Co., Ltd..

Mr. LONG Tao, aged 64, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 28 April 1994. He is also a member
of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. LONG graduated from
Research Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance, majoring
in accounting. Mr. LONG holds a master's degree in economics.
He had served at Accountancy Division of Central University of
Finance and Economics, and New York office of KPMG Peat
Marwick. Mr. LONG had acted as a member of Securities Issue and
Approval Committee of China Securities Regulatory Commission
and member of Chinese accounting expert panel for China-Hong
Kong Securities Team. Mr. LONG is currently an associate professor
of the Accountancy Division of Central University of Finance
and Economics and the Chairman of Beijing Haiwen Investment
Consultants Inc.. Mr. LONG has extensive knowledge and
experience in corporate finance, accounting, audit, assets appraisal,
restructuring of enterprise and listing. Mr. LONG also serves as
the independent non-executive director of Crown International
Corporation Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 727). Mr. LONG resigned as the
independent non-executive director of China Asset Management
Co., Ltd and Beijing North Star Company Limited (the H shares of
which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code:
588) respectively in 2012 and 2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, aged 65, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 28 April 1994. He is
also the chairman and a member of the audit committee and
the remuneration committee and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. SONG is general manager
of Chongging Ping Zheng Law Office, a member of the China
Economic Law Association and the China Lawyers Association, and
a council member of the Chongging Lawyers Association, a vice
chairman of the Foreign Affairs Committee of Chongging Lawyers
Association and a member of the Chongqging Legal Academy.
Mr. SONG has been a lawyer and notary for 29 years. Mr. SONG
graduated from South West Institute of Political Science and Law
and also studied international law in the China University of Political
Science and Law and foreign economic law at Shenzhen University.
He was formerly vice chairman of Chongqging Notary Office and vice
chairman of Chongging Foreign Law Office.

Mr. LIU Tianni, aged 52, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 31 May 2011. He is also a member
of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. LIU is also the
executive Director, the chairman and the chief executive officer
of Wonderful Sky Financial Group Holdings Limited (the shares of
which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code:
1260), an executive director and deputy managing director of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited (the shares of which
are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 171)
and an independent non-executive director of Chongging lron &
Steel Company Limited (the shares of which are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1053) and Luoyang Glass
Company Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1108). Mr. LIU graduated from
Beijing Normal University with a master degree in science. He has
over 15 years of experience in corporate administration and trade
business. In October 2008, Mr. LIU was awarded "Outstanding
Young Chinese Entrepreneur of the World” by Asiaweek, as an
acknowledgement of his excellent corporate management and
prominent business strategies.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LIU Erh Fei, aged 57, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and a member of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee since 28 May
2015. He graduated from Harvard Business School with a master
degree in Business Administration. He graduated from Brandeis
University with a bachelor degree in Economics and International
Relations in 1984 and from Beijing Foreign Studies University,
majoring in English, in 1981. From 1987 to 2012, Mr. LIU served
as the head of China region for Goldman Sachs Group, the head
of Thailand and China regions for Morgan Stanley Group, the head
of Asia Pacific region for the Smith Barney investment bank of
the US, the head of Asia Pacific region for the investment banking
department of Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank and
the chairman of China region and the co-head of the Asia Pacific
region for the investment banking department of Merrill Lynch
Group. He is now working as the vice-chairman of Xin Tai Fund
Management Company ((ERESEE AR (the largest shareholder
of which is Cinda Group) and Hwabao Financial (financial segment of
Baosteel) and the independent director of Wing Lung Bank Limited
(@ wholly-owned subsidiary of China Merchants Bank Company
Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 3968)).

SUPERVISORS

Mr. GUAN Jinming, aged 58, has been the supervisor representing
the Shareholders and the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
since 28 May 2015. He graduated from Chongging Workers and
Staff Members College (EE MR T XZ), majoring in finance and
accounting and from Southwest University with a master degree
of Agricultural Promotion. He is a senior accountant. During the
period from November 1976 to February 2015, Mr. GUAN served
in a number of positions including a mine worker at Tushan,
Chongging, an officer of labour union, an accounting officer of the
finance section of a radio second plant in Chongging, an accounting
officer of the finance section of an electronic equipment company in
Chongging, an accounting officer of the finance section of Electronic
Bureau in Chongging City, Sichuan Province, a deputy section
officer of the audit section of Resources Bureau in Chongqing City,
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Sichuan Province, a deputy section officer and a section officer of
the information section of Economic Committee in Chongging City,
Sichuan Province, a section officer of the Production Administration
Bureau of Economic Committee in Chongging City, Sichuan
Province, a deputy director of the Production Administration Bureau
of Economic Committee in Chongging City, Sichuan Province,
a deputy director of the Production Administration Bureau of
Economic Committee in Chongging City, a section chief of the
food products section of Economic Committee in Chongging
City, a director of the enterprise reformation section of Economic
Committee in Chonggqing City, a vice-president and a member of the
party committee of Chongging Machinery and Electronic Holding
(Group) Co., Ltd. (EE#EILE(ERE)/AF)), a president, a secretary
of the party branch and a director of Chongging United Assets and
Equity Exchange Company Limited, a deputy general manager,
a party committee standing member, a chairman of supervisory
committee and a party committee member of the China Silian
Instrument Group Co., Ltd and a chairman of supervisory committee
of Chongging Chuanyi Automation Co.,Ltd.. Mr. GUAN has been a
chairman of supervisory committee and a party committee member
of Qingling Group since February 2015.

Ms. MIN Qing, aged 48, has been the supervisor representing
the Shareholders since 15 June 2006. Ms. MIN ceased to be the
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee on 28 May 2015. Ms. MIN
is the deputy secretary of the Party Committee and the Chairman
of the Workers Union of Qingling Group, and has 25 years of
experience in corporate management. Ms. MIN graduated from
Chongging Communication College in Mechanical Engineering in
1988 and had undergraduate education. She also studied corporate
management in Japan.

Mr. LEI Bin, aged 41, has been a supervisor representing the staff
and workers of the Company since 6 June 2012. Mr. LEI graduated
from Hunan University, specializing in international finance, and
obtained the bachelor degree in economics. He joined the Company
from July 1997 until the present. Mr. LElI was served as a vice
minister of comprehensive plan. He is the minister of the financial
department of Qingling Group.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’'S REPORT

Dear Shareholders:

Since the establishment of the Supervisory Committee, each
member has been performing his duty in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association with a view of protecting the
interests of shareholders and the Company. We have attended
the board meetings and have given our opinions regarding the
business development, market expansion, technological reform,
basic management and team building of the Company. We have
also monitored the guiding ideology of the management and
considered whether the decisions made by the management were
in compliance with state laws and whether they were appropriate
for the development of the Company and were in the interests of
shareholders.

According to its power, the Supervisory Committee has reviewed
evidence of the Company’s accounts, books, reports and other
accounting information from time to time. In our opinion, the
financial statements have been properly prepared while the
accounting principles and the method of financial management
adopted are in compliance with relevant rules and regulations.

The Supervisory Committee have carefully examined the financial
statements, the Directors’ Report and the proposal for appropriation
of profit to be presented before the annual general meeting by
the Board of Directors. In our opinion, the chairman of the board,
directors, managers and senior management have not engaged
in any malpractices which would be prejudicial to the interests of
shareholders and employees of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance as
well as the economic results of the Company, and we are confident

about the future development of the Company.

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
GUAN Jinming

Chongaing, PRC,
18 March 2016
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board is pleased to present its annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu
light, medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose
vehicles and diesel and petrol engines. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries, an associate and joint ventures are set out in notes 34,
19 and 20 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a fair view of the business and a discussion of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year 2015 and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Directors’ Report”, “Corporate Governance Report” and “Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements” sections of this annual
report. In addition, a discussion of the Company’s environmental
policies and performance, the Company’'s compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company and the relationship between the Company and significant
stakeholders is set out in “Directors’ Report” and “Corporate
Governance Report” sections of this annual report. The business
review in the above sections comprise part of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 91. The directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.16 per share to the
shareholders whose names appear in the register of members on 29
June 2016, amounting to approximately RMB397,163,000.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to environmental protection, energy-
saving and emission reduction, and the integrated use of resources.
Adhering to the principles of making production and operation
harmony to the ecological environment, the Group has adopted the
concept of environmental protection, energy-saving and emission
reduction and the integrated use of resources in its production
and operating activities through reducing emission, protecting the
environment and saving of resources while putting into practice the
scientific concepts of environmental protection and integrated use
of resources.

The Group keeps placing strong emphasis on environmental
protection issues and coordinates the relationship between
production development and environmental protection, with the
aim to develop pollution-free production modes. The successive
operation of the newly-installed environmental protection facilities,
the improvement of working environment and the integrated
measures adopted to prevent and mitigate pollution have made
the pollutants produced not exceeding the standards set by
local environmental authorities. The Group strives to protect and
improve the environment, enhance the environmental awareness
of our staff, ensure the well-being of our staff and builds a clean
and favorable production and working environment. With various
measures such as resources recycling and reusing and energy-
saving and emission reduction putting in place in the production
process, the Group endeavors to produce energy-saving and
environmentally-friendly products while keeping in mind the well-
being of the production workers. The implementation of the above
measures fully demonstrates the Group's sustainable development
strategies and its determination on environmental protection.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

COMPLIANCE OF RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

With regard to the protection of intellectual properties — The
Group has complied with the terms stipulated under the Trademark
Law of the People's Republic of China and its Regulation for the
Implementation of the Trademark Law and the Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China and Rules for the Implementation of the
Patent Law and the specific requirements of the city to carry out the
work in relation to the design and file registration of trademarks and
patents and has actively taken measures to protect the trademarks
and patents of other interested stakeholders.

With regard to the product quality and consumer rights — The
Group has strictly complied with the Law of the People’'s Republic
of China on Product Quality and the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests in the
manufacturing and selling procedures of automobile products
and automobile parts. With respect to product quality, the Group
strengthens source management and formulates stringent
standard in evaluating parts suppliers to ensure the quality of
parts products and prevent substandard goods being passed off
as high-quality ones while purchasing automobile products and
parts. During the production process, standardized management
is strictly implemented with an emphasis on the management of
craftsmanship quality, and defective and substandard parts are
prohibited to be assembled at the production line in order to ensure
the satisfactory rate at the production line. Before the products
are transferred into the warehouses, product quality inspection
system were strictly put in place to forbid defective products
being launched. In terms of protection of consumers’ rights, we
have complied with the Law of the People's Republic of China
on Protection of Consumer Rights, and product manuals with full
details are provided to consumers while advertisements are tailored
to truly reflect the authentic characteristics of products.

20 E#EERMHARZA T Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

With regard to the interests of the employees — The Group strives
to comply with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Social
Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China, so as to safeguard
the legitimate interests of workers. All full-time employees are
entitled to work-related injury insurance, unemployment insurance,
medical insurance, pension insurance, and maternity insurance and
housing fund as required by the state regulations. The Group has
also arranged annual body check for all of its staff, and this further
protects the legitimate interests of the employees. Moreover, the
Group also actively organizes activities for its employees with regard
to the education of prevention of occupational disease and other
safety and health related issues.

With regard to tax payment — The Group complies with specific
regulations of the People’s Republic of China on various taxes, and
pays taxes according to the law for the purpose of ensuring that all
tax payment made by the Group is in compliance with the laws and
regulations.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

Risks relating to the decline in sales and profit as a result of
weakened market environment

As China’s economy is turning into ‘new normal’ amid the cross
impact of the ‘overlapping of the three phases’, the sales of
domestic commercial vehicles decline as a result of the overall
decline in demand for commercial vehicles. With the protracted
economic downturn, the competition in the domestic commercial
vehicles market may further exacerbate, causing impact to the
Group’s sales for commercial vehicles and hence affecting the
Group's profit.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Risks relating to the insufficient research and development and
the increase in costs in order to adapt to the tightened national
regulations on emission and consumer demand

Taken into the consideration of environmental protection, the
national regulations on emission tend to be tightened and the
switching time tends to be shortened while the consumer
demand tends to be more diversified and competitors tend to
launch new products more frequently, this has put forward higher
requirement for the Group’s research and development capability.
However, there exists lead time from research and development
to commercial production of replacement products, the Group's
capability in research and development is crucial in satisfying
national and consumer requirements while outperforming the
competitors. Nevertheless, it may not be possible to timely launch
new products that can outperform competitors every time due to
constraints on capital, time, and ability. Since the Group’s costs
on research and development will be driven up by the launching
of new products, such research and development costs may have
to transfer to the product price to the extent not offset by the
reasonable reduction of the Group's internal costs, and this will
inevitably weaken the Group’s product competitiveness.

Risks relating to the fall of products’ popularity and reputation
arising from consumers’ comment

In recent vyears, the competition among domestic commercial
vehicles enterprises intensifies as the market environment
deteriorates. Competitors keep launching mid-to-high end
commercial trucks into the market, causing unfavorable impact to
the Group’s dominant position in the mid-to-high end commercial

truck market.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately RMB33,248,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion of its
production facilities.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property,
plant and equipment and investment properties of the Group are set
out in note 15 and note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or at
any time during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the amount of
profit available for distribution shall be deemed to be the amount
of profit determined in accordance with the relevant accounting
principles and financial regulations applicable to companies
established in the PRC (“PRC GAAP"). The Company’'s profit
available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2015
was the retained profit of approximately RMB1,730,763,000 (2014
approximately RMB1,699,681,000).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The profit of the Company for a financial year shall be applied in
accordance with the following order:

(i) making up losses;

(i) allocation to statutory surplus reserve fund,

(ii)  if there are preference shares, payment of dividends in respect
of preference shares;

(iv) allocation to discretionary surplus reserve fund; and

(v)  payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.

The detailed proportion of distribution in respect of items (ii) to (v)
above for any financial year shall be formulated by the Board in
accordance with the operational conditions of the Company and its
development requirements and shall be submitted to shareholders’
general meeting for approval.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

DU Weidong (Chairman)
(resigned on 28 May 2015)

HE Yong (Chairman)
(appointed on 28 May 2015)

Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (Vice Chairman)
(resigned on 20 March 2015)

Keiichiro MAEGAKI (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
(appointed on 28 May 2015)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

GAOQ Jianmin
Makoto TANAKA
Masashi HARADA
(resigned on 28 May 2015)

Naoto HAKAMATA
(appointed on 28 May 2015)

ZENG Jianjiang
PAN Yong
(resigned on 20 March 2015)

LI Juxing
(appointed on 28 May 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

LONG Tao
SONG Xiaojiang
XU Bingjin
(resigned on 28 May 2015)

LIU Erh Fei
(appointed on 28 May 2015)

LIU Tianni

Supervisors:

GUAN Jinming (Chairman)
(appointed on 28 May 2015)

MIN Qing
ZHOU Hong
(resigned on 28 May 2015)

LEI Bin
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

All the directors other than Mr. DU Weidong, Mr. Naotoshi
TSUTSUMI, Mr. Masashi HARADA, Mr. PAN Yong and Mr. XU
Bingjin were re-elected or appointed as directors to hold office from
the date of the annual general meeting for 2015 to the date of the
annual general meeting for 2018.

Mr. Makoto TANAKA who is an existing executive director of the
Company has proposed to resign as an executive director due to
the personnel changes of Isuzu as the substantial shareholders
of the Company. His resignation of directorship shall become
effective upon the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Mr. Makoto TANAKA has confirmed that
he has no claims against the Company whatsoever whether in
respect of fees, remuneration or compensation for loss of office and
has no disagreement with the Board and there is no other matter
with respect to his resignation which needs to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders.

Isuzu has given a written notice to the Company of its intention
to nominate Mr. Masanori OTA as a candidate for election as an
executive director of the Company. Mr. Masanori OTA has also
given a written confirmation to the Company, indicating that he is
willing to be elected as an executive director of the Company.

The Board has recommended to propose a resolution to accept the
resignation of Mr. Makoto TANAKA as an executive Director of the
Company and elect Mr. Masanori OTA as an executive director of
the Company to hold office from the date of the forthcoming annual
general meeting to the date of the annual general meeting for 2018.

All the supervisors other than Ms. ZHOU Hong were re-elected and
appointed as supervisors to hold office from the date of the annual
general meeting for 2015 to the date of the annual general meeting
for 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the executive directors and independent non-executive directors
that had been re-elected had renewed or entered into service
contracts or appointment letters with the Company for a term of
three years commencing on 28 May 2015.

All the supervisors that had been re-elected and appointed had
renewed or entered into appointment letters with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on 28 May 2015.

None of the directors or supervisors has a service contract with
the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive directors as regards to their
independence to the Company and considers that each of the
independent nonexecutive directors is independent to the Company.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, none of the directors or the supervisors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors and supervisors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to which the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which any directors or supervisors or
their connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year or at the end of the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into by the Group or
existed during the year.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the vyear, none of the directors or supervisors of the
Company had any interest in any business which compete or may
compete with the business of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION AND THE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The details of directors’, supervisors’ and chief executives’
remuneration and the highest paid individuals are set out in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements. All of the five highest paid
individuals of the Company for both years were directors.

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, there were 123 shareholders recorded in
the register of shareholders of the Company and the shareholders
other than a director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company,
having an interest and short positions in 5% or more of the relevant
class of the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests in the shares and short positions required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ARBBRMEFREBER

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

EERER
REBAH E AR
Percentage of Bolt
FisERAEE the relevant  Percentage of
REER R1ER Number of & class of entire share
Name of Shareholders Class of Shares shares held  Capacity share capital capital
BiAE (5E) ER2R WER 1243,616,403% EREBA 100.00% 50.10%
Qingling Motors (Group) Domestic shares 1,243,616,403 shares  Beneficial owner 100.00% 50.10%
Company Limited
AHRAEARAT HiR 496,453,654 EmEAA 40.08% 20.00%
[suzu Motors Limited H shares 496,453,654 shares  Beneficial owner 40.08% 20.00%
Allianz SE HiR 102,122,000 XEHEEER 8.24% 411%
Lif3)
Allianz SE H shares 102,122,000 shares  Interest of a controlled 8.24% 411%
(Note)  corporation
Edgbaston Investment HP 62,085,000/ HELE 5.01% 2.50%
Partners Limited
Edgbaston Investment H shares 62,085,000 shares  Investment Manager 5.01% 2.50%
Partners Limited
B RE - Note:
AT &Allianz SEFT# AR R R 2 R1HEH The details of the interests held by Allianz SE in the Company are as follows:
HED
BRAD HER BB
Total interests in shares
TEEEMER EERRERE ZEHES HEEEn [BEg E

Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling shareholders % controlled Direct interests Indirect interests

Allianz Asset Management AG Allianz SE 100% — 102,122,000

Allianz Global Investors GmbH Allianz Asset Management AG 100% — 101,600,000

RCM Asia Pacific Ltd. Allianz Global Investors GmbH 100% 98,240,000 —

Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Ltd. Allianz Global Investors GmbH 100% 3,360,000 —

Allianz Asset Management of America Allianz Asset Management AG 100% — 522,000

Holdings Inc.

Allianz Asset Management of America L.P. Allianz Asset Management 100% — 522,000
of America Holdings Inc.

Allianz Global Investors U.S. Holdings LLC Allianz Asset Management 100% — 522,000
of America L.P.

Allianz Global Investors Allianz Global Investors U.S. 100% 522,000 —

Fund Management LLC

Holdings LLC
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2015.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee (composed of one executive director
and four independent non-executive directors) on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had continuing connected transactions
with (a) Qingling Group and its subsidiaries & EFE#EERR AR
Chongging Qingling Casting Company Limited (“CQCC"), EEE 1
#EARR A7) Chongging Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. (“CQFC"), EEE%
BB AMR A7) Chongging Qingling Axle Co. Ltd. (“CQAC"), EEE$
B2 EEiIF AR A A Chongging Qingling NHK Seat Co. Ltd. (“CQNHK"),
BEEHBREABR AT Chongging Qingling Plastic Co. Ltd. (“CQPC"),
EEERBIRAR2AAE Chongging Qingling Aluminium Casting Co.
Ltd. (“CQACL"), EEER /THEEZMBRRAF Chongging Qingling
Automobile Chassis Parts Co. Ltd. (“QAC"), EEEHHMNITHARR
‘A7) Chongging Qingling Machinery Parts Co. Ltd. (“QM") and &
EESERSEAR AT ("Qingling Zhuan Yong”, formerly known
as BEEERAE FHEEABR AR Chongaing Qingling Automobile
Manufacture and Assembly Co. Ltd., (b) EEEHREEFREAR
(“Qingling Moulds"), a sino-joint venture company which is owned
as to 50.56% and 49.44% by the Company and Isuzu respectively
and a subsidiary of the Company, (c) Isuzu, (d) Qingling Isuzu
(Chongging) Engine Co.,Ltd. (“Qingling Isuzu Engine”), an entity
established and jointly controlled by the Company and Isuzu, (e)
Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Automobile Sales and Service Co.,
Ltd (“Qingling Isuzu Sales”), an entity established and jointly
controlled by the Company and Isuzu, (f) Isuzu Qingling (Chongging)
Engineering Co., Ltd (“Isuzu Qingling Engineering”), an associate
controlled by Isuzu, and (g) Isuzu Qingling (Chongging) Autoparts
Co., Ltd (“Isuzu Qingling Autoparts”), a company controlled by Isuzu
and invested by the Qingling Group. Qingling Group and Isuzu held
50.10% and 20.00% of the equity of the Company respectively as at
31 December 2015. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the above parties
are connected persons of the Group. Details of the continuing
connected transactions with the parties are as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Group and its subsidiaries:

(i)

On 23 December 2010, the Company entered into
parts supply agreements with Qingling Group, CQCC,
CQFC, CQAC, CQNHK, CQPC and CQACL respectively.
The Company sells parts and raw materials for the
manufacture of automobile parts. The price is determined
based on the cost (or plus a lower profit margin). The
Company purchases automobile parts. The purchase
price is determined in the following order: at prices not
higher than market prices; or if no comparable market
price, at prices based on actual costs or reasonable
costs (whichever is lower) incurred plus a profit margin
of not more than 8%, and in any event, at prices no less
favorable than those offered to independent third parties.
The payment shall be made within one month after
delivery.
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Group and its subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

(i)
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(Cont'd)

The Company also renewed the agreements with such
companies on 17 December 2013, relating to the supply
of certain automobile parts by Qingling Group, CQCC,
CQFC, CQAC, CQNHK, CQPC and CQACL, respectively,
to the Company. The purchase price is determined in
the following order: at prices not higher than market
prices; or if no comparable market price, at prices based
on actual costs or reasonable costs (whichever is lower)
incurred plus a profit margin of not more than 8%, and in
any event, at prices no less favorable than those offered
to independent third parties. The payment shall be made
within one month after delivery.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Group and its subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

(i)

(Cont'd)

On 21 August 2014, the Company also entered into
auto parts and materials agreements with CQCC, CQFC,
CQACL, CQAC, CQPC, CONHK, QAC, QM and Qingling
Zhuan Yong respectively. The Company will sell to
CQCC the scrap metal left over from the Company's
manufacturing process and the prices shall not be lower
than the market price of scrap metal of same type and
the price of such scrap metal sold by the Company to
independent third parties (if any); the Company will
supply to CQNHK and Qingling Zhuan Yong semi-finished
auto parts and the prices of which will be determined
based on costs incurred by the Company plus a profit
margin of not exceeding 8%; And the Company will
supply to all Qingling Autoparts Companies (refer to all
subsidiaries of Qingling Group in the supply agreements)
raw and crafting materials and the prices of which will
be equivalent to the cost of sourcing such materials from
independent third parties plus the relevant tax payable.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Group and its subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

(i)

(Cont'd)

During the year, the amount for the above continuing

connected transactions are as follows:

Sales of parts and raw material for the manufacture

of automobile parts:

with  respect to Qingling Group

RMB13,323,000;

with respect to CQCC: RMB33,271,000;

with respect to CQFC: RMB2,462,000;

with respect to CQAC: RMB3,076,000;

with respect to CQNHK: RMB14,328,000;

with respect to CQPC: RMB1,288,000; and

and with respect to CQACL: RMB1,097,000.

Purchases of automobile parts:

with  respect to Qingling Group
RMB141,559,000;

(Note

(Note
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Group and its subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

(i)

(Cont'd)

with respect to CQCC: RMB27,696,000;

with respect to CQFC: RMB40,353,000;

with respect to CQAC: RMB115,931,000;

with respect to CQNHK: RMB60,451,000;

with respect to CQPC: RMB63,102,000; and

with respect to CQACL: RMB10,426,000.

Note 1: Including RMB1,285,000, RMB9,517,000 and RMBZ2,521,000
representing the sales of parts and raw materials to QM, Qingling Zhuan
Yong and QAC respectively during the year.

Note 2: Including RMB55,812,000, RMB5,956,000 and RMB79,791,000
representing the purchases of automobile parts from QM, Qingling Zhuan
Yong and QAC respectively during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Group and its subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

(i)

38 E#AERMH AR T Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.

Qingling Moulds entered into moulds supply agreements
with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries CQCC, CQFC,
CQPC and CQACL on 23 December 2010, and Qingling
Moulds also renewed the agreements with such
companies on 17 December 2013, relating to the supply
of moulds and related products and/or maintenance
and processing services by Qingling Moulds to the
aforesaid companies. And the price is determined on
normal commercial terms. If there are no sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on
normal commercial terms, the price shall be on terms
fair and reasonable to Qingling Moulds, which shall be
no less favourable to Qingling Moulds than terms offered
to independent third parties. The payment shall be made
within one month after delivery. During the year, the
amount of the continuing connected transaction was
RMB141,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Group and its subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company entered into a chassis supply agreement
with the Qingling Group on 23 December 2010 (renewed
on 17 December 2013) relating to the sale of automobile
chassis and related components by the Company to
Qingling Group, the price is determined with reference
to the market price of chassis and related components
with a credit period of three to six months after the sale.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was RMB1,574,500,000.

The Company entered into a warehouse leasing
agreement on 23 December 2010 with Qingling Group
(renewed on 17 December 2013), relating to the lease
of warehouse by Qingling Group to the Company at a
consideration of RMB6,040,000 per annum, and the
settlement period shall not be more than 30 days. The
aforesaid price is set by the Board of the Company
with reference to the depreciation charged by Qingling
Group, on straight-line depreciation basis, on the relevant
assets during the year. It is set at prices not higher than
market prices; or at prices no less favorable than those
offered to independent third parties. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was

RMB6,040,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Group and its subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

(v)

40 E#ARERHBER 2T Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.

On 12 December 2014, the Company entered into
three new lease agreements with Qingling Group.
The first lease agreement relates to the leasing of
land with an area of approximately 19,880.4 square
meters by Qingling Group to the Company for storage
of autoparts and raw materials with the annual rent of
RMB954,259.20. The second lease agreement relates
to the leasing of land with an area approximately 20,697
square meters by Qingling Group to the Company for
use as a testing site for autoparts with the annual rent
of RMB993,456. The third lease agreement relates to
the leasing of land and the premises erected thereon
with an area of approximately 12,191 and 10,431
square meters respectively by Qingling Group to the
Company for its operating uses with the annual rent of
RMB1,627,236. The rent payable by the Company under
the new lease agreements was determined after arm’s
length negotiations between the parties thereto with
reference to the prevailing market rent and existing rent
payable under the existing warehouse leasing agreement
entered into between the Company and Qingling Group
on 17 December 2013. The rent shall be payable by
the Company every month and the outstanding amount
of the annual rent shall be settled by the Company
before the last day of each year.During the vyear, the
amount of the continuing connected transaction was
RMB3,574,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(a)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Group and its subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

(vi)

The Company entered into an equipment leasing
with  CQFC, 2010,
(renewed on 17 December 2013), relating to the lease

agreement on 23 December
of machineries for further processing of casting and
forging parts from CQFC by the Company. Annual
rental was based on the depreciation charge of the
relevant machineries for the relevant year payable by the
Company to CQFC in cash on quarterly basis, subject to
adjustment upon consultation with each other if there is
a material change on the depreciation charge. During the
year, the amount of the continuing connected transaction
was RMB19,974,000.

The details and amount of the above connected
transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
to the

during the vyear are set out in note 31(i)

consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling
Moulds:

The Company entered into a supply agreement with the
Qingling Moulds on 23 December 2010 (renewed on 17
December 2013), relating to the supply of moulds and related
products and maintenance and processing services by Qingling
Moulds to the Company, and the supply of raw materials and
processing services by the Company to Qingling Moulds, the
price is determined on normal commercial terms, if there are
no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms fair and reasonable
to the Company, and the terms are no less favorable than
the terms available to independent third parties from Qingling
Moulds. The payment shall be made within one month
after delivery. During the year, the purchase amount of the
continuing connected transaction was RMB 15,014,000 and the
sales amount was RMB13,524,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c)

Significant continuing connected transactions with Isuzu:

On 23 December 2010, the Company entered into an
automobile parts and components supply agreement
with Isuzu whereby Isuzu provides the Company with
certain automobile parts and components produced by
Isuzu and which are required in the production processes
and the Company renewed the agreement with Isuzu
on 17 December 2013. As there are no sufficient
comparable transactions, the price of the Company's
purchases of automobile parts and components is
determined with reference to actual or reasonable costs
incurred (whichever is lower) plus a profit margin of not
more than 10%, and the payment shall be made at the
time of delivery. During the year, the amount of the
continuing connected transaction was RMB849,186,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c)

44 ERRERH AR 2T Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.

Significant continuing connected transactions with

Isuzu:

(Cont'd)

(i)

(iif)

On 23 December 2010, the Company entered into
an accessory sets and other automobile parts and
components supply agreement with Isuzu whereby the
Company provides Isuzu with certain accessory sets and
other automobile parts and components produced by
the Company and which are required in the production
processes of Isuzu and the Company renewed the
agreement with Isuzu on 17 December 2013. As there
are no sufficient comparable transactions, the sales
price of those parts and components is determined
with reference to actual or reasonable costs incurred
(whichever is lower) plus a profit margin of not more
than 10%, and the payment shall be made within 40
days after delivery. During the year, the amount of the
continuing connected transaction was RMB21,634,000.

During the year, the Company continued the transactions
under the agreements with Isuzu entered on 27 May
1996, 20 February 2000, 11 April 2002, 23 May 2008, 21
December 2012, 15 January 2013 and 25 February 2013
for the transfer of technology and provision of technical
know-how and the permission to use the trademark of
Isuzu and the emblem by Isuzu to the Company for the
production and sales of 4Z Engines, F series Chassis
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c)

Significant continuing connected transactions with

Isuzu:

(Cont'd)

(iii)

(Cont'd)

and related parts and components, 4JH1-TC Diesel
Engines, 700P3X series vehicles and related parts and
components, GXR/GXZ vehicles, FXZ vehicles and FYH
vehicles. The price is set at an initial fee (among which,
the initial fee for 4Z Engines, F series Chassis, 4JH1-TC
Diesel Engines and 700P3X series vehicles and related
parts and components, GXR/GXZ vehicles, FXZ vehicles
and FYH vehicles has already been fully paid by the
Company to Isuzu), plus royalties, which is determined
with reference to the price of the parts and components
manufactured and sold by the Company pursuant to the
agreement, staff training fees and technical assistance
fees. The amount shall be paid every half a year.

Also, as the technology licensing agreements for 100P-N
series and 140TF/UC series were due and the Company
and Isuzu made the Trademark Licensing Agreement
and the Trademark Licence Confirmation Agreement on
26 March 2014 and 21 August 2014 respectively. Isuzu
continues to grant the Company a non-transferrable right
to use the trademarks and emblems of Isuzu, “ISUZU"
and “A+4&", in the sale of the B00P, 100P and TF/
UC series vehicles produced by the Company. And the

Annual Report 2015 £ 3§ 45



=1

SHEBE

R (&)

€ BEA+RZEERBERER
5 : (&)

(iii)

(&)

T AR QA — I A
EOEF AR EE R
AN A &) A E /9 600P -
100PKRTF/UCK 3| /5 &
BERATHEER
E([ISUZUl BT f +
#72]) cWHESRIA
B2 12 A & (600P
% 5| :2,000 H B /
& + 100PZ %l : 1,500
B E / #  TFUCZ
5 :1,5008 B, %) °
RAFERN  NBFE
BEXHNELESHER
A R #18,765,0007T ©

EARAFEARNED+
KeREXZFELRE
BIHN A M HWwE
B 5E31(0) ©

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Isuzu:
(Cont'd)

(i)~ (Cont'd)

License fee for each series of vehicle is as follows:
JPY2,000 for each 600P series vehicle sold, JPY1,500
for each 100P series vehicle sold and JPY 1,500 for each
TF/UC series vehicle sold. During the year, the amount
incurred for the continuing connected transaction was
RMB18,765,000.

The details and amount of the above connected
transactions with Isuzu during the year are set out in
note 31(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(d)

Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Isuzu Engine:

On 23 December 2010, the Company and Qingling Isuzu

Engine entered into the following agreements (renewed on 17
December 2013):

the supply agreement, relating to the provision of
parts and raw materials of engines for assembling
and composing engine assemblies by the Company to
Qingling Isuzu Engine, whereas Qingling Isuzu Engine
provides engine assemblies and their parts to the
Company for assembling and maintenance of automobile.
The sales/purchase price is determined at actual costs
plus a premium of not more than 10%. Payment will
be made within one month after delivery. During the
year, the purchase amount of the continuing connected
transaction was RMB1,265,395,000 and the selling

amount was RMB890,576,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(d)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Isuzu Engine: (Cont'd)

(i)

(iif)

48 ERERHER 2 T Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.

the consolidated services agreement, relating to the
provision of certain services (including services such
as water and gas supply, transportation, equipment
repair and maintenance, medical and hygiene and
three warranties) by the Company to Qingling Isuzu
Engine. The price is determined at actual costs plus
tax payable according to the new consolidated services
agreement made on 17 December 2013. And the price
is determined at actual costs plus a premium of not
more than 10% according to the previous consolidated
service agreement made on 23 December 2010. And
the settlement period shall not be more than 30 days.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected

transaction was RMB1,444,000;

the equipment lease agreement, relating to the lease
of leased equipment by the Company to Qingling Isuzu
Engine. The monthly rent is determined with reference
to the depreciated value of the
of the
previously conducted by an independent international

leased equipment
leased equipment at the time of valuation

asset appraisal firm and the market value of the leased
equipment, and the settlement period shall not be
more than 30 days. During the year, the amount of the
continuing connected transaction was RMB39,077,000;

and
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(d)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Isuzu Engine: (Cont'd)

(iv)

the factory lease agreement, relating to the lease of land
and factory premises by the Company to Qingling Isuzu
Engine. The monthly rent was RMB318,600, which is
determined with reference to the annual depreciated
value of the leased land and factory premises and the
value of taxes payable for leasing, and the settlement
period shall not be more than 30 days. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
RMB3,823,000.

The details and amount of the above connected
transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine during the year
are also set out in note 31(iii) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Report 2015 £ %8 49



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

iﬁ&ZiK% (e)

Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling
Isuzu Sales:
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of the Company plus relevant tax, and the settlement
period shall not be more than 30 days. The Company
renewed the leasing agreement on 17 December 2013.
The monthly rent is RMB130,000. During the year, the
amount of the continuing connected transaction was
RMB1,560,000;
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(e)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Isuzu Sales: (Cont'd)

(i)

(iii)

the consolidated services agreement, relating to the
provision of certain services (including services such
as transportation, equipment repair and maintenance,
by the

The price is

medical and hygiene and three warranties)

Company to Qingling Isuzu Sales.
determined at actual costs plus tax payable according to
the new consolidated services agreement made on 17
December 2013 and the settlement period shall not be
more than 30 days. During the year, the amount of the

continuing connected transaction was RMB250,000;

the automobile and parts supply agreement, relating to
the provision of automobiles and parts by the Company
to Qingling Isuzu Sales. The price is determined at
the market value of the automobiles or parts. The full
payment shall be made 30 days before the date of
delivery. During the year, the amount of the continuing
connected transaction was RMB9,284,000.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions

with Qingling Isuzu Sales during the year are set out in note

31(iv) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

KERERS (K CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)
() BEATREBEREMAE R ()  Continuing connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling

BEERS : Engineering:

() ARFEATHRERRE (i)  The Company and Isuzu Qingling Engineering entered
MAZENR_ZT—=%F into a factory lease on 17 December 2013, relating to the
+ZRAR+tEHFMZ— lease of the factory premises by the Company to Isuzu
D TRRAL - RABER Qingling Engineering. The agreement shall be effective
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T - BB ST applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1 January 2014
BHREBIEXR SR (whichever is later) to 31 December 2016. The monthly
BEIEEMER AR rent is RMB73,800, and the settlement period shall not
KRB 5T R P A H At be more than 30 days. During the year, the amount of
BFgAR A =F the continuing connected transaction was RMB886,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(f)  Continuing

connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling

Engineering: (Cont'd)

(i)

The Company and Isuzu Qingling Engineering entered
into a consolidated services agreement on 17 December
2013,
(including services such as water, electricity and gas

relating to the provision of certain services

supply, vehicle rental, telecommunication and medical

and hygiene) by the Company to Isuzu Qingling
Engineering. The agreement shall be effective from
the date upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/
or completing all other procedures in accordance with
all applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1 January
2014 (whichever is later) to 31 December 2016. The
consideration is determined at the actual costs of the
Company plus taxes payable, and the settlement period
shall not be more than 30 days. During the year, the
amount of the continuing connected transaction was

RMB8,000.

The details and amount of the above connected
transaction with Isuzu Qingling Engineering during the
year are also set out in note 31(v) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(@ Continuing

connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling

Autoparts:

(i)

54 BE$RERG AR T Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.

The Company and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts entered
into a supply agreement on 17 December 2013, relating
to the provision of parts of engines by Isuzu Qingling
Autoparts to the Company, and the provision of
automobiles, parts of engines and raw materials by the
Company to Isuzu Qingling Autoparts. The agreement
shall be effective from the date upon obtaining all
relevant approvals and/or completing all other procedures
in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and
regulations or 1 January 2014 (whichever is later) to 31
December 2016. Prices for products provided shall not
be higher than the market prices and shall not be less
favourable than the prices offered to independent third
parties. If there are no comparable market prices, prices
shall be determined based on the actual or reasonable
costs incurred (whichever is lower) plus a profit margin of
not more than 8%, The payment shall be made within 30
days after delivery. During the year, the Company did not
make any purchase from Isuzu Qingling Autoparts and
the amount of sales by the Company to Isuzu Qingling
Autoparts was RMB37,978,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(@ Continuing

connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling

Autoparts: (Cont'd)

(i)

The Company and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts entered into
a consolidated services agreement on 17 December
2013,
(including services such as water, electricity and gas

relating to the provision of certain services

supply, vehicle rental, telecommunication and medical

and hygiene) by the Company to Isuzu Qingling

Autoparts. The agreement shall be effective from
the date upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/
or completing all other procedures in accordance with
all applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1 January
2014 (whichever is later) to 31 December 2016. The
consideration is determined at the actual costs of the
Company plus taxes payable, and the settlement period
shall not be more than 30 days. During the year, the
amount of the continuing connected transaction was

RMB58,000.

The details and amount of the above connected
transactions with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts during the
year are set out in note 31(vi) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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(i)

The Company, Qingling Isuzu Engine, Isuzu Qingling
Engineering and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts entered into
a testing agreement on 17 December 2013, relating
to the provision of certain testing services (including
but not limited to smoking tests, external property
tests and combustion analysis tests for full-loading and
steady rolling engines; temperature resistance tests
and heeling tests for vehicles; and endurance tests and
vibration tests for parts) by the Company to Qingling
Isuzu Engine, Isuzu Qingling Engineering and Isuzu
Qingling Autoparts. Prices for services provided shall not
be higher than the market prices and shall not be less
favourable than the prices offered to independent third
parties. If there are no comparable market prices, prices
shall be determined based on the actual or reasonable
costs incurred (whichever is lower) plus a profit margin
of not more than 8%. The payment shall be made within
30 days after services are provided. During the year, the
Company did not provide the testing services to Isuzu
Qingling Engineering and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts and
the amount of testing services provided by the Company
to Qingling Isuzu Engine was RMB2,490,000.

The details and amounts of the above connected
transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine during the year
are also set out in note 31(iii) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to conduct audit work in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Pursuant to the rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules, the auditor has issued a letter to the Board of the
Company that nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group:

1. have not been approved by the listed issuer's board of
directors;

2. were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company;

3. were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

4.  have exceeded the cap.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company confirm
that the transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary and usual course of its business, on normal commercial
terms or better and in accordance with the agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(i)

58 BE#RERSG AR T Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.

On 30 May 2012, the Company and lIsuzu entered into a
production information management system development
agreement whereby the Company has engaged Isuzu for the
development of a production information management system
at a consideration of JPY444,444,380, which was determined
after arm’s length negotiations between the parties thereto by
reference to the estimates of the costs for manpower to be
involved, experiments to be conducted and use of experiment
facilities to be incurred by Isuzu. The consideration shall be
payable by the Company to Isuzu in 3 tranches: 50% of the
consideration shall be payable within 30 days from the date of
approval of the executed production information management
system development agreement by the relevant authorities
of the government of the PRC; 30% of the consideration shall
be payable within 30 days after phase | of the management
system has been tested and accepted by the parties; and
20% of the consideration shall be payable within 30 days after
phase Il of the management system has been tested and
accepted by the parties. The first and second tranches of the
consideration had been paid by the Company to Isuzu in July
2012 and November 2013 respectively. During the year, the
Company paid the third tranches of the consideration to Isuzu
pursuant to the production information management system
development agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(ii)

On 2 April 2014, the Company and Isuzu entered into a 600P
emission technology development agreement whereby the
Company engages Isuzu for the technical transformation and
enhancement of 600P series vehicles and engines which the
Company currently produces so that they will meet certain
specified standards for emissions, power rating and torque
rating, including the phase 5 emission standards issued by
the government of the PRC for commercial vehicles. The
agreement shall be effective from 2 April 2014 to the date of
obtaining all approval from the relevant PRC authorities for
the manufacturing and sale of the modified 600P vehicles,
be JPY110,000,000, which
was determined after arm’s length negotiations between

and the consideration shall

the parties by reference to the estimates of the costs for
manpower involved, experiments to be conducted and use of
experiment facilities to be incurred by Isuzu. The consideration
shall be payable by the Company to Isuzu in the following
manners: 30% of the consideration shall be payable within 20
days from the date of approval of the executed 600P emission
technology development agreement by the competent
authorities of the government of the PRC; 20% of the
consideration shall be payable within 20 days after receiving
the results of the development and design carried out by
Isuzu pursuant to the 600P emission technology development
agreement; and 50% of the consideration shall be payable
within 20 days from the date of obtaining the certification
of the vehicles' quality and emission standard for and the
registration of the modified 600P vehicles. During the year, the
Company did not pay to Isuzu pursuant to the 600P emission
technology development agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(i) On 21 August 2014, the Company and Isuzu entered into
a marketing fee agreement, pursuant to which Isuzu will
pay a total sum of JPY500,000,000 to the Company for the
marketing activities to be conducted by the Company in the
years from 2014 to 2016. The total sum of JPY500,000,000,
after deducting the tax payable by the Company to the
Japanese government (if any), will be paid by Isuzu to the
Company in the following manners: (a) JPY125,000,000 will be
paid before 30 September 2014; (b) JPY125,000,000 will be
paid before 31 March 2015; (c) JPY125,000,000 will be paid
before 30 September 2015; and (d) JPY125,000,000 will be
paid before 31 March 2016. In arriving at the consideration,
the parties have taken into account the marketing expenses
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2013. The amount of the consideration under the marketing
fee agreement is equivalent to approximately 10% of the
marketing expenses of such financial year. During the year,
Isuzu has settled the second tranche of the marketing fee,
amounting to a total of RMB6,447,000.

(iv) On 7 August 2015, the Company and Isuzu entered
into a Capital Contribution Agreement, pursuant to which the
registered capital of Qingling Isuzu Sales will be increased
from USD4.6 million to USD20.9 million and the Company
and Isuzu will each make an additional capital contribution
of USD8.15 million into Qingling Isuzu Sales (the “Capital
Contribution”). The Company will contribute the Renminbi
equivalent of USD8.15 million whereas Isuzu will make capital
contribution in USD. Such amount of Capital Contribution was
negotiated and determined by the Company and Isuzu after
consideration of factors such as the investments on software
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

and hardware for project construction, the operational
objective and the working capital requirement after the
project has come into operation. The Capital Contribution
Agreement will become effective after obtaining the approval
from the competent department of the PRC government. The
Capital Contribution shall be made by the Company and Isuzu
before the modification of the operation licence of Qingling
Isuzu Sales is completed. After the Capital Contribution, the
shareholding percentage of the Company and Isuzu in Qingling
Isuzu Sales will remain unchanged.

The approval from the competent department of the PRC
government was obtained and the Capital Contribution has
been effective.

The details and amounts of the connected transaction with
Isuzu during the year and also set out in note 31(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE LARGEST SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the five largest suppliers
accounted for 60.64% of the total purchases of the Group. The
largest supplier accounted for 23.02% of the total purchases.
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries, a joint venture of the Company
and a Japanese trading company, through which Isuzu channels
its supply of parts and components to the Group, are included in
the five largest suppliers of the Group. Details of transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries and with Isuzu are set out in
the section “Connected Transactions” above. Other than disclosed
above, the Company’s directors and supervisors, their associates
or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital), did not have any
interests in the Group’s five largest suppliers for the year ended 31
December 2015. For the year ended 31 December 2015, Qingling
Group was the largest customer. The aggregate sales attributable
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FIVE LARGEST SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS (Cont’'d)

to the Group’s five largest customers (except Qingling Group) were
less than 30% of the Group's total sales.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not issue or grant any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
year.

There were no outstanding or conversion of convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the Company
or its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity during the year.

DESIGNATED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not hold any designated
deposits or any time deposits that were overdue but could not be
collected upon maturity.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, none of the Company or its subsidiaries had
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed
securities.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 2,842 employees (2014:
2,884 employees). During the year, no material change was noted
for the number of employees or their remuneration policy. The
Group actively formulated and implemented various training to its
staff of all levels.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the Group's staff retirement benefits scheme are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquires to all directors
and supervisors, the Company confirms that all directors and
supervisors have complied with the requirements of the Model
Code during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information on the Company’s corporate governance practices
is set out in the “"Corporate Governance Report” from pages 65 to
88.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, there is sufficient public
float as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares are held
by the public throughout the year 2015.

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS

The audit committee has reviewed with the management and
auditors of the Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal controls
and financial reporting matters including the review of the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting for
2016 to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP Chongging Branch and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditors of the Company.

CHANGE IN DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, during the
period from 26 August 2015 (as the date of approval of the 2015
Interim Report of the Company) to 18 March 2016 (as the date
of approval of the 2015 Annual Report of the Company), changes
in information required to be disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) are as follows:

1. Mr. Makoto TANAKA, an executive director of the Company,
has resigned as a general manager of the Company with effect
from 16 November 2015.

2. Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI, an executive director and the vice
chairman of the Company, has been appointed as a general
manager of the Company with effect from 16 November 2015.

By order of the Board
HE Yong
CHAIRMAN

Chongging, the PRC
18 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company puts high emphasis on and endeavors to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance. The Board believes that
good corporate governance practices are important to promote
investors’ confidence and protect the interest of our shareholders.
We attach importance to our staff, our code of conduct and our
corporate policies and standards, which together form the basis
of our corporate governance practices. The Board has adopted
sound corporate and disclosure practices, and is committed to
continuously improving those practices and cultivating an ethical
corporate culture.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has complied
with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except for the deviation from
code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code as stated
below.

Under code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code,
an issuer should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its directors. With regular, timely and effective
communications among the directors and the management of the
Group, the management of the Group believes that all potential
claims and legal actions against the directors of the Company can be
handled effectively, and the possibility of actual litigation against the
directors of the Company is relatively low. The Company will review
and consider to make such arrangement as and when it thinks
necessary.

THE BOARD

Members of the Board are accountable to the shareholders for the
success and sustainable development of the Company. The Board
is responsible for the management of all the important issues of
the Company, including the duties of convening general meetings,
implementing the resolutions passed at the general meetings,
determining the operating strategies and investment proposals of
the Company, formulating the plans of the Company for annual
financial budgets and final accounts, establishing and approving
the internal control and risk management systems and monitoring
the performance of the members of the senior management. The
directors shall make objective decisions for the interests of the
Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted board diversity policy in September 2013 to
comply with the new code provisions in relation to board diversity
effective from September 2013.
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When determining the composition of the Board, the Company shall
take into account our business operations and select candidates
with appropriate and necessary skills and experience and those
who can express their views in a multi-angle perspective. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

As at 31 December 2015, the Board of the Company is comprised
of 11 members, including 7 executive directors and 4 independent
non-executive directors. Independent non-executive directors
account for over 36% of the number of Board members.

An analysis of the Board based on a scope of diversity perspective is
set forth below:

Bt Fi4 5 BB 58

Position Age Group Length of service
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

According to the new regulation regarding cadre office
management, it is inappropriate for Mr. DU Weidong, an executive
director of the Company, being the chairman of the board of
directors of the controlling shareholder of the Company, to have
a concurrent position in the Company, and as such, Mr. DU
Weidong has resigned as an executive director of the Company.
The Company elected Mr. HE Yong as an executive director
of the Company to replace Mr. DU Weidong who resigned as
executive director at the 2015 annual general meeting. Mr. Naotoshi
TSUTSUMI, an executive director of the Company, has resigned as
an executive director as he has reached the age of retirement. The
Company elected Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI as an executive director of
the Company to replace Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI who resigned as
executive director at the 2015 annual general meeting. Mr. Masashi
HARADA, an executive director of the Company, has resigned as
an executive director due to the change of work allocation. The
Company elected Mr. Naoto HAKAMATA as an executive director
of the Company to replace Mr. Masashi HARADA who resigned
as executive director at the 2015 annual general meeting. Mr.
PAN Yong, an executive director of the Company, has resigned as
executive director as he has reached the age of retirement. The
Company elected Mr. LI Juxing as an executive director of the
Company to replace Mr. PAN Yong who resigned as executive
director at the 2015 annual general meeting. Mr. XU Bingjin, an
independent non-executive director of the Company, has resigned
as independent non-executive director as he has reached the age of
retirement. The Company elected Mr. LIU Erh Fei as an independent
non-executive director of the Company to replace Mr. XU Bingjin
who resigned as independent non-executive director at the 2015
annual general meeting.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board of the Company is
comprised of 11 directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. HE Yong (Chairman)
Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI
(Vice Chairman and General Manager)
Mr. GAO Jianmin
Mr. Makoto TANAKA
Mr. Naoto HAKAMATA
Mr. ZENG Jianjiang (Deputy General Manager)
Mr. LI Juxing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LONG Tao

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

Mr. LIU Tianni

Biographical particulars of the directors are set out in the section
headed "Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, all the
directors, including independent non-executive directors, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years,
and their re-election is subject to a vote of the shareholders.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the existing independent non-executive directors
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the overall strategies of the Company, and
monitors the performance of the senior management and the
related risks and control systems so as to achieve the development
objectives of the Company. Day-to-day management of the
Company is delegated to the executive directors and the senior
management, who are required to report back to the Board. All
the members of the Board have separate and independent access
to the senior management, and are provided with full and timely
information about the conduct of the business and development of
the Company, including monthly reports and recommendations on
significant matters.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the committees
under the Board, and will seek independent and professional
advices from them in respect of related matters.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy. During
2015, the Company held 8 board meetings, and the attendance
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ERZTE—HFHFEETESR record of each director at the board meetings in 2015 is set out
B H 42 8% below:

BEHER/ EERRERE/
VN 3Ry (1)

Attendance in Attendance by
= person/Number of Proxy/Number of
Directors Meetings Meetings (Note 1)
HiTES
Executive Directors
HERAE (FER) RZE-RFRA-TNEEE) (#2) 33 0/0
Mr. DU Weidong (Chairman) (resigned on 28 May 2015) (Note 2) 3/3 0/0
MBEEE (FEFR) (RZE-LERAZ+TN\REZME) 5/5 0/0
Mr. HE Yong (Chairman) (appointed on 28 May 2015) 5/5 0/0
REGEE (AEFR) (RZZ-REZA-THEME) (#2) A 22
Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (Vice Chairman) (resigned on 20 March 2015) (Note 2) il 2/2
AEE—BEE (BEFRFELE) (RZE-NERA-TN\BEZME) 5/5 0/0
Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI (Vice Chairman and General Manager) (appointed on 28 May 2015) 5/5 0/0
BERRE 8/8 0/0
Mr. GAO Jianmin 8/8 0/0
HHALE 8/8 0/0
Mr. Makoto TANAKA 8/8 0/0
FEELAE (RZT-RERAZT\BEHME) (#2) n 2/2
Mr. Masashi HARADA (resigned on 28 May 2015) (Note 2) il 2/2
BREARE RZZ-RETA-T\BEZT) 33 2/2
Mr. Naoto HAKAMATA (appointed on 28 May 2015) 3/3 2/2
SETEE 8/8 0/0
Mr. ZENG Jianjiang 8/8 0/0
EBEE (WZZ-RE=A-THHM) (i#2) 3/3 0/0
Mr. PAN Yong (resigned on 20 March 2015) (Note 2) 3/3 0/0
ZEERE (WZZ-AFRA-T/\BEZH) 5/5 0/0
Mr. LI Juxing (appointed on 28 May 2015) 5/5 0/0
BIHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
ERLE 8/8 0/0
Mr. LONG Tao 8/8 0/0
RNIRAE 6/6 2/2
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang 6/6 2/2
GEeaE (MZZ-AERAZTNREE) (#2) 33 0/0
Mr. XU Bingjin (resigned on 28 May 2015) (Note 2) 33 0/0
BA-RMEE (RZZ-—RERAZT/N\BEZE) 5/5 0/0
Mr. LIU Erh Fei (appointed on 28 May 2015) 5/5 0/0
BIRFEE 8/8 0/0
Mr. LIU Tianni 8/8 0/0
#F(1) BEAQRAMNARERE—"EBHE Note: (1) Pursuant to Article 103 of the Articles of Association of the Company, where

Wk EERAMTREEEESS a director is unable to attend the board meetings due to certain cause he
B INEEETHEMESR may in writing appoint other director to attend the board meetings on his/her
REFEEEEH - behalf.

(2) MMERLLE - RESLEE R (2) Prior to the resignation of Mr. DU Weidong, Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI, Mr.
HEELE BBELANRGRS Masashi HARADA, Mr. PAN Yong and Mr. XU Bingjin, the Company held 3
FHEBERN  ARAEITTIX board meetings.

EEELHE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

At the board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters
including the Company'’s annual and interim financial statements,
annual budget, proposals for final and interim dividends, annual
report and half-year report. At least 14 days’ notice is given to all
directors for all regular board meetings and all directors are given
the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
agenda and board papers for each meeting are sent to all directors
at least 3 days in advance of every regular board meeting. All
minutes of the board meetings are kept by the company secretary
and are available to all directors for inspection.

There is no material financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between any two members of the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. ZENG Jianjiang and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael were appointed
as company secretaries responsible for PRC and Hong Kong affairs
respectively on 15 June 2015 and 28 April 1994. Mr. ZENG Jianjiang
is a full time employee of the Company, and works as the deputy
general manager of the Group. He is familiar with the daily routine
of the Company. Biographical particulars of Mr. ZENG Jianjiang are
set out in the section headed "Biographical Details of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong
and the senior partner of Tung & Co., the Hong Kong legal adviser
of the Company and a China Appointed Attesting Officer. He
holds a B.A. degree in law and accounting from the University
of Manchester, the United Kingdom. He has over 20 years of
experience as a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong. Mr. TUNG is also
the company secretary of a number of companies listed in Hong
Kong. Although Mr. TUNG is not an employee of the Company, he
has been appointed by the Board to advise on legal and governance
related issues. The primary corporate contact person of the
Company is Mr. ZENG Jianjiang, the company secretary responsible
for PRC affairs.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the persons who had
been working as company secretaries for the issuers on or before
31 December 1994 shall comply with the requirements in relation
to professional trainings set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
from the financial year beginning at 1 January 2017. However, as
confirmed respectively by Mr. ZENG Jianjiang and Mr. TUNG Tat
Chiu Michael, they had taken the relevant professional trainings for
no less than 15 hours during the year of 2015.

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. HE Yong and Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI hold the positions of
Chairman of the Board and General Manager respectively, which are
two clearly separate positions.

The Chairman is responsible for leading, and overseeing the
operations of the Board, effectively planning the board meetings
and ensuring that the Board is acting in the best interests of the
Company. The Chairman shall proactively encourage directors
to fully participate in the Board's affairs and make contribution
to the functions of the Board. The Board, under the Chairman’s
leadership, has adopted good corporate governance practices and
procedures and has taken appropriate steps to maintain effective
communication with the shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The General Manager is responsible for managing the business
of the Company, as well as formulating and implementing the
Company’s policies and is answerable to the Board in relation to the
overall management of the Company. The General Manager of the
Company works in close association with other executive directors
and the administration team of each core business division, ensuring
the funding requirements of the business of the Company are
sufficiently met and at the same time closely monitor the operation
and financial results of the Company according to business plans
and budgets, and advise the Board on matters in relation to the
Company’s development. The General Manager of the Company
is required to keep close communication with the Chairman
and all directors to keep them fully informed of all substantive
matters relating to the Company’s business development, and
is also responsible for building and maintaining a highly efficient
administrative support team to support him to discharge the
assigned duties in this position.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year, directors
are provided with monthly updates on the Company's performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
director to discharge their duties. In addition, all directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
updates directors on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to
time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.
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REERHENLE EFTHEC According to the records provided by the directors, a summary
T-RAF+-_A=Z+—HBIEFE of the trainings received by the directors for the year ended 31
ZXEJOBEMT December 2015 is as follows:

= EHIER

Directors Type of Trainings

HITES

Executive Directors

HEREE (R-Z-AFTA-+/\RET)

Mr. DU Weidong (resigned on 28 May 2015)

WELE (RZE-RFRAZTNBEZR)

Mr. HE Yong (appointed on 28 May 2015)

RESEE (MZZ—RE=ZA-THEHT)

Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (resigned on 20 March 2015)
AEE—BEE (RZE-RERA-TN\BEZHT)
Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI (appointed on 28 May 2015)
RRRLE A,
Mr. GAQ Jianmin A,
AEALE

Mr. Makoto TANAKA

FRESLE (RZE—RFRA-+/N\HBET)

Mr. Masashi HARADA (resigned on 28 May 2015)
BREALE R-Z-RERA-TN\REZT)
Mr. Naoto HAKAMATA (appointed on 28 May 2015)
LRI%AE

Mr. ZENG Jianjiang

EERE (RZZ-HLF=A-THED)

Mr. PAN Yong (resigned on 20 March 2015)
FEERAE (MZZ—RFRAZ+\BEZT)
Mr. LI Juxing (appointed on 28 May 2015)
BYFYTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

EREE

Mr. LONG Tao

RNIFEHE

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

BEREE (RZE-RERAZT/\HEHE)

Mr. XU Bingjin (resigned on 28 May 2015)
-RMEE (RZZ-—RFRAZTN\BEZT)
Mr. LIU Erh Fei (appointed on 28 May 2015)
BIREEE

Mr. LIU Tianni

x>
W WO o W

oo

Frrr

W W W W W w L0 W1
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO0OO0n

>r>>>>> > > >
OOOOOOOOOOn

it - Notes:

A. HEENE R Witk Hik A. Attending briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.
18 o

B. EEfNeR /KM e R, KiHniE B. Making speeches at briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.
EBRES -

C. BHEAMKE —REK EFB C. Reading seminar materials or magazines and updates relating to economy,
5 FHRASEMEREE R TR general business, directors’ responsibilities and the Listing Rules or the latest
HEEANMNEME S RERN development of other applicable regulatory requirements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Three committees have been set up by the Board, namely, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee. The Board is responsible for discharging corporate
governance functions as set forth in the Corporate Governance
Code. Sufficient resources are provided to enable the board
committees to undertake their specific roles.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its nomination committee on 26 March
2012 with the terms of reference. The nomination committee
comprises four independent non-executive directors (namely Mr.
LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. LIU Erh Fei and Mr. LIU Tianni)
and one executive director (namely Mr. HE Yong). Mr. HE Yong,
an executive director, serves as the chairman of the nomination
committee, and is responsible for the nomination of the directors
of the Company. The committee is delegated by the Board to
formulate the policies for the nomination of directors and establish
the procedures for the nomination of directors and the standards for
the selection and recommendation of directors. It is also responsible
for review of the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the assessment of the independence of the independent non-
executive directors. Directors shall be elected at the shareholders’
general meeting for a term of three years. Upon expiry of the
term, a director shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, all
directors are appointed for a specific term. Mr. DU Weidong and Mr.
Masashi HARADA resigned as executive directors, Mr. HE Yong,
Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI, Mr. Naoto HAKAMATA and Mr. LI Juxing
were appointed as executive directors, Mr. XU Bingjin resigned as
an independent non-executive director and Mr. LIU Erh Fei was
appointed as an independent non-executive director at the annual
general meeting held on 28 May 2015.
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RBEEZEEeN - —THEETT The nomination committee held two meetings in 2015. It reviewed
2REE BN T ESHEE AT the structure of the Board and assessed the independence of the
RN IEMITEENE I N independent non-executive directors, and made recommendations
MIREBMBLAE  AIIBE—PL to the Board on the nomination of Mr. HE Yong, Mr. Keiichiro
£ BHEAXRE FEEX4E MAEGAKI, Mr. Naoto HAKAMATA, Mr. LI Juxing and Mr. LIU Erh
RBAZMEAEAREEREAME Fei as the candidates to be elected as directors.

EERbER -

THARZEEENKELEF The attendance record of the members of the nomination
B H R 40 8% committee at the meeting is set out below:

HEE/ERAH
K& Attendance/
Members Number of Meetings
HITES
Executive Director
HEREE (FE) (RZE-RFRA-T\BEE) Ui
Mr. DU Weidong (Chairman) (resigned on 28 May 2015) 1N
WBRE () (RZZ-AFHAZTN\REZRME) 17
Mr. HE Yong (Chairman) (appointed on 28 May 2015) 1”1
BYFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
EREE 2/2
Mr. LONG Tao 2/2
RNIEE 2/2
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang 2/2
BEREE (RZE-RERAZT/\BEHE) 0
Mr. XU Bingjin (resigned on 28 May 2015) 1
A-REE (RZE-RAFRAZTN\BEZME) 1
Mr. LIU Erh Fei (appointed on 28 May 2015) 11
BIRExEE 2/2
Mr. LIU Tianni 2/2

76 BE#RERS AR 2D T Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.



FHWEES

ARAER-_ZFEZTRFOA-T
BRITHFHNEZEE -FTHEZE
CHARAEBBEIIFNTES
(DRIRBEBEE  RANIEAE -
BloRELE BRERLE) R
MITESF(IBEL)AK - F M
ZEETRFARNIHE -

FHEZEEMRAETIZEE ()
REARBEELSRERABRN
ERHFMBREREE  RKRL
IE A5 T B33 B3 JE /0 A2 Fr i) 7T %7 B
BE HNEFERLEZ  OE
EESEMAICENIRBEM
AR EEEBNH MRS
CIEEZTSERETERNNTE
EREREEABNHHTE
g EEFEEZZBEHNRTES
FaRhEBABNFHGE
AEERBERRINOHM A
NhEoREEBEAREERE
fil B 0 8 A 161 5 (e T e it
ERATEEREREEZAGH
HERIRIEBBAZEMEAEX
MOREE UERZFHEERS
WK — 2 - BRBEEE MK
— B RENTAEARAFEE T
BZ (RS MU ERESETR
REMBEEIRECERBESMY
REBERYE  UBRZSERH
HEAMBRK - BEREEFLD
R —2 - BEEABETRAEAEE
E RO IFERTEEZNFHME
EFEeRmES -

ARAERM—HRNEESER
ERNHTEELSRERARN
FMFBERA -

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its remuneration committee on 20 April
2006. The remuneration committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang, Mr. LIU Erh Fei and Mr. LIU Tianni) and one executive
Director (namely Mr. HE Yong). The remuneration committee is
chaired by Mr. SONG Xiaojiang.

The main duties of the remuneration committee shall be: (a) to
make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
the remuneration of all directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (b) to review and approve the management'’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate
goals and objectives; (c)(i) to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management; or (ii) to make recommendations
to the board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management; (d) to consider salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions elsewhere in the group; (e) to review
and approve the compensation payable to executive directors and
senior management for any loss or termination of their office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive; (f) to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;
and (g) to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors.

The Company has adopted a model to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration package of individual executive
directors and senior management.
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HEz-_Z—RF+-_A=+—H The remuneration of the members of the senior management by
IEFE mRERABZFHHAE band for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:
AT
AR (AR¥) A
Remuneration Bands (RMB) Number of persons
0%250,000 0 to 250,000 5
250,001%350,000 250,001 to 350,000 0
#815350,000 Over 350,000 0
F LlFEENRATEABNEE Note: The members of the senior management disclosed above refer to those
EREZUIIMES - employees other than directors and supervisors.
TWNEZEeR T —RFHETT The remuneration committee held one meeting in 2015. It made
TRgHE RBERFLZINEL recommendations to the Board on the remunerations of the current
FHPTEENFHMESSRY and newly appointed independent non-executive directors and the
EEARRERTEZENRITE remunerations of current and newly appointed executive directors
EREENFHMESEREE and supervisors.
o
THAETFMHEZEEERER ST The attendance record of the members of the remuneration
—HFHEERNLEE L committee at the meeting held in 2015 is set out below:
HER/EEAH
K& Attendance/
Members Number of Meetings
BITEE
Executive Director
HERELE (W-F-RERA-+/\BEE) TEA
Mr. DU Weidong (resigned on 28 May 2015) N/A
MELE FE
Mr. HE Yong N/A
BIFBTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
EELE 17N
Mr. LONG Tao il
RINLEE (£E) 11
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman) "
BELELE (WZT-RERA-+N\BEH) N
Mr. XU Bingjin (resigned on 28 May 2015) N/A
o N
Mr. LIU Erh Fei N/A
BIREEE 1N
Mr. LIU Tianni 7N
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Members

BYFYTES

Independent Non-executive Directors
EREEE

Mr. LONG Tao

RNIEE (FE)

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman)
BEREE (RZE-RERAZT/\HEHE)
Mr. XU Bingjin (resigned on 28 May 2015)
IRk

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

IR EE

Mr. LIU Tianni

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with specific
terms of reference in accordance with the Listing Rules. The audit
committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors,
who possess appropriate commercial and financial skills and
experience to understand financial statements. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. SONG Xiaojiang and other members are Mr. LONG
Tao, Mr. LIU Erh Fei and Mr. LIU Tianni.

The terms of reference of the audit committee include the duties
to recommend the engagement and replacement of external
audit firms, oversee the Company's internal auditing system and
implementation, verify the Company's financial information and
disclosure, examine the Company’s internal control system, and
take charge and act as a communication channel between internal
and external auditors.

The audit committee held two meetings in 2015. It reviewed the
final results for 2014 and the interim results for 2015 and together
with the Board considered the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company and its subsidiaries and considered that it is
effective and adequate for the time being.

The attendance record of the members of the audit committee at
the meetings in 2015 is set out below:

LR/ EEAH
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board adopted the Terms of Reference for Corporate
Governance set out in Code D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code as the terms of reference for the Board to perform their
duties in relation to corporate governance on 26 March 2012, which
include developing and reviewing the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations
to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) for the Company’'s employees and directors;
and reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During 2015, the Board has performed the corporate governance
function as mentioned above.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility in overseeing the
operation of all business units under the Company’'s management.
It shall appoint suitable qualified personnel to serve on the boards
of all subsidiaries operating in key business areas, attending their
board meetings to oversee the operations of these companies.
The management in each business division is accountable for the
operations and performance of the business within its area of
responsibility.

The Company’s management has implemented a system of internal
control to provide reasonable assurance that the Group's assets are
safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained, applicable
laws and regulations are complied with, reliable financial information
are provided for the Company’'s management for publication
purposes and investment and business risks affecting the Group are
identified and properly managed.

SRE R A R 2 F Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.



P>
i3
g

VAN
A ==

ARAEZEELBF R
ZN/NNS DS SR N = NI VI R g
ARRERR MARERNRE
EM SRR BEEEZE ARE
ERERERNE - EFENE
B R A &R & B 75 R R RE
FTHMNER BINEERER
EEEZFIREMEREEFNR
Rt -R-T-—R"EF=A+/\H
EFEQ o xERE _T-—0FE
MEREBRST  EFERR/A
NEIAMEZE RS ZZE R BRR

BEERROBRELARENEE -
RESHRESR

ERRERENREHRENZ
BFEAMEE  ARRMEH
RIBCE 75 M B 1R 51D EXIVARR
REMHRANEME  LEEES
FHEEHRERZETEZ(A
BHEBRBESDMGIET AFHE
BRBEREK -

EEREEESFRS

AR EE R LR RIK 8+ AR
B LETRAEFETESZRRS
MERETAI(RETRDIERE
EREFRETEFRRINETT
Al - KM E2REERESFELE
EERE MAESEREEER
R-ZZF-hFHREBEE2ET
RESTAMRERITE -

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The directors of the Company review the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries at least
once every year. The scope of a review includes financial control,
operation control, compliance control and risks management
functions. The Board will also consider the adequacy of resources,
staff qualification and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. As
at 18 March 2016, the Board has completed the aforementioned
review for 2015 and the Board is of the view that the Company's
internal control system can properly and effectively safeguard the
investments of the shareholders and the assets of the Group.

PRICE-SENSITIVE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Company
is aware of its obligations under Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules and has established
the inside information disclosure policy with close regard to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors and
supervisors. After specific enquiry with all the directors and
supervisors, all directors and supervisors confirmed that they have
completely complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout 2015.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The supervisory committee comprises three members, two of
whom are representatives of the shareholders (namely Mr. GUAN
Jinming and Ms. MIN Qing) and one of whom is the representative
of the staff and workers (namely Mr. LEI Bin). Mr. GUAN Jinming
serves as the chairman of the Supervisory Committee. During 2015,
the supervisors of the Company exercised their right of supervision
in accordance with the laws to protect the legal interests of the
shareholders, the Company and the employees. The details of the
work of the supervisory committee are set out in the Supervisory
Committee’s Report in this annual report.

The supervisory committee held two meetings in 2015. It reviewed
the financial statements for 2014 and nominated Mr. GUAN Jinming
as the candidate to be elected as a supervisor.

The attendance record of the members of the supervisory
committee at the meetings in 2015 is set out below:

HEE/SERH
Attendance/
Number of Meetings

RERARMENES

Representatives of the shareholders

RELL 2/2
Ms. MIN Qing 2/2
Bzt (RZE-—REAAZT\BET) 0
Ms. ZHOU Hong (resigned on 28 May 2015) 11
BERLE (BFR) (RZE-RFRA-TN\BEZA) 0
Mr. GUAN Jinming (Chairman) (appointed on 28 May 2015) 1
BIARMENES

Representatives of the staff and workers

EPrpiks 2/2
Mr. LEI Bin 2/2
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The external auditors currently appointed by the Company are the
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants
LLP Chongging Branch and Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
its PRC and international auditors respectively. In order to maintain
their independence, these accountants do not take on non-audit
work. The work the external auditors are engaged to perform must
produce measurable efficiency and added value to the Company
and should not cause adverse effect on the independence or
independent standing of their audit function. The remuneration of
the auditor is disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

With the assistance of the accounting department, the Board is
responsible for preparing the financial statements for each financial
year and ensuring that, in preparing such financial statements,
appropriate accounting policies are adopted and applied and the
PRC accounting standards and systems and International Financial
Reporting Standards are observed, to give a true and fair view of
the financial position and operating results of the Company. The
statement of the auditors about their responsibilities on the Group's
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
on pages 89 to 90.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

After the announcement of the Company’s interim and annual
financial results, the Company has proactively arranged for briefing
meetings for people from the investment community at regular
intervals, using the opportunity to promote investor relations and
two-way communication. The Company, through the investor
relations manager, responds to the information requests and
inquiries from the investment community. The Company also
publishes information such as the Company's announcements and
circulars on its website (www.gingling.com.cn) in a timely manner
under the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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The Company encourages shareholders to attend the general
meeting in which the Chairman and directors will answer questions
about the Company’s business raised by shareholders. The
Company distributes annual and interim reports to shareholders in a
timely manner for their inspection.

During the year, the Company has convened one general meeting,
i.e. the annual general meeting. The attendance record of directors

REARSHLHENT at the general meeting is set out below:

HEER/BRRAGRH
= Attendance in person/
Directors Number of General Meetings
HITES

Executive Directors
HEREE (M-Z-RAFRA-1+/\RET)
Mr. DU Weidong (resigned at 28 May 2015)

1
1

WELEE (RZE-RFRAZTN\BEZRM) NER
Mr. HE Yong (appointed at 28 May 2015) N/A
REGEE (RZE-RE=R=THET) NER
Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (resigned at 20 March 2015) N/A
IEE— (RZE-RAFRAZT/\BEZH) ek
Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI (appointed at 28 May 2015) N/A
BEREE n
Mr. GAO Jianmin ”n
HEALE 171
Mr. Makoto TANAKA 1N
FRESLE (WF-RFRA-+\BEHT) 0N
Mr. Masashi HARADA (resigned at 28 May 2015) 0/1
BREAGE (RZE-RFRA-+\BEZMA) A
Mr. Naoto HAKAMATA (appointed at 28 May 2015) N/A
BEEE (RZE-RFZA=THET) ik
Mr. PAN Yong (resigned on 20 March 2015) N/A
ZEERE (WZZ-AFRAZT\REZH) ek
Mr. LI Juxing (appointed at 28 May 2015) N/A
LRILE n
Mr. ZENG Jianjiang 1
BUFHTES

Independent Non-Executive Directors

EELE n
Mr. LONG Tao 1N
FNIxE o
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang on
BELEE MZZ-RERA-T/\BEL) 171
Mr. XU Bingjin (resigned at 28 May 2015) 1
-REE (RZE-RAFRAZTN\BEZE) ik
Mr. LIU Erh Fei (appointed at 28 May 2015) N/A
BIRREE 17
Mr. LIU Tianni 11
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the financial year, the Company did not make any
amendment to its constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of
the Company:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to Article 80 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
two or more shareholders who hold an aggregate of 10% or more
of the shares carrying voting rights at the meeting proposed to be
held may, sign one or several written requisition in the same form
requesting the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
of shareholders or a class meeting of shareholders, specifying the
objects of the meeting. Upon the receipt of the aforesaid written
request(s), the Board shall convene an extraordinary general
meeting or a class meeting of shareholders as soon as possible. The
number of the shares held as aforesaid shall be calculated based on
these shares held by the shareholders as at the date of the written
requisition.

Where the Board fails to give a notice convening the meeting within
thirty days upon the receipt of the aforesaid written requisition,
the requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, within four
months upon the receipt of the said requisition by the Board. A
meeting convene by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Board.
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Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason
of the failure of the Board duly convene a meeting, shall be born by
the Company and be deducted from the amounts payable by the
Company to such directors who were in default.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’
general meetings by shareholders

The content of a proposal shall be a matter that should be
determined by shareholders’ general meeting, which shall have
definite topics to be discussed and specific matters for resolution
and shall be in line with the laws and administrative regulations.

Shareholders that independently or collectively hold 3% or more of
shares in the Company may make a temporary proposal and submit
it to the convener(s) in written form ten days prior to a shareholders’
general meeting. The convener(s) shall give a supplementary notice
of shareholders’ general meeting to announce the content of the
temporary proposal within two days upon receipt of the proposal.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, after sending out a
notice of shareholders’ general meeting, the convener(s) shall not
make any amendments to the proposals included in the notice or
add any new proposals.

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a director is made available in the website of the Company.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board of the Company in writing through Mr. ZENG Jianjiang,
the company secretary, whose contact details are as follows:

Mr. ZENG Jianjiang

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan,

Jiulongpo District, Chongging, the People’s Republic of China
E-mail: security@qingling.com.cn

TEL: (86) 23-65093859

Fax: (86) 23-68830397

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries
and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of
the Company, where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’
questions.

Annual Report 2015 £ 3 g7
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TE—RFARABRBERE In 2016, the Company will continue to dedicate efforts into
HBE S AQABERBE  MERE enhancing the standard of its corporate governance according to the
MEOEER BERIRESA ongoing regulatory changes, development trend of the Company,
RIERKE  UERAFNER and feedback opinions from shareholders, ensuring a stable and
EREENBREEE - healthy growth for the Company while adding value to shareholders.
BEFg By Order of the Board

ZET ZENG Jianjiang

NEE Company Secretary

HFE e EE Chongging, the PRC,

“E-RF=A+N\H 18 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF QINGLING MOTORS CO., LTD.
(a Sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited company established in
the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Qingling
Motors Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to 201, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’'s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
18 March 2016
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GEeEBEEKkHM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
T AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEE_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HIFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
gz S
“E-nf —E-|mE
+=ZB=+-B +=ZA=+-H
IEEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
Wizt ANREFT ANREFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
Wogs Revenue 5,6 5,504,296 5,800,078
HEKA Cost of sales (4,476,437) (4,926,202)
£ Gross profit 1,027,859 873,876
Hel A Other income 157,734 124,177
HiFIERELXFE Other gains and losses, net (6,186) 17,777
A RIHER R Distribution and selling expenses (374,248) (310,424)
EREM Administrative expenses (215,831) (174,301)
HRER Research expenses (36,414) (23,886)
ok il =N gl Share of profit of an associate 278 269
DERERREE Share of results of joint ventures 12,257 15,247
BRAEAT R A Profit before tax 9 565,449 522,736
PrgR s Income tax expense 7 (80,310) (74,037)
FEENREGA BE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 485,139 448,698
TIATEEERRT AR A B Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to:
KRR ERA Owners of the Company 479,887 444,549
RS Non-controlling interests 5,252 4,149
485,139 448,698
BREAZF Basic earnings per share 14 RMB0.19 RMB0.18
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Interest in an associate
Interests in joint ventures
Bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
and prepayments

Bills receivable

Prepaid lease payments

Bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months

Restricted bank balances

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade, bills and other payables
Tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Hrat
NOTES

22
23
16
25

26
26

27

28

R-Z-1F RZE-NF
+ZA=+-B +=ZA=+-H
At At

31 December 31 December
12015 2014
ANREFT ANREFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
749,086 919,792
40,795 42,043
34,917 38,318
137,030 150,465
6,844 6,566
470,860 414,581
376,308 —
13,744 12,232
1,829,584 1,683,997
766,102 1,037,487
872,992 877,535
2,060,348 2,748,660
1,413 1,383
2,416,985 2,797,786
79,999 —
2,182,750 1,133,712
8,380,589 8,596,563
2,317,771 2,361,216
19,614 31,272
2,337,385 2,392,488
6,043,204 6,204,075
7,872,788 7,788,072
2,482,268 2,482,268
5,092,148 5,009,424
7,674,416 7,491,692
298,372 296,380
7,872,788 7,788,072

The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 201 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18
March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

HE Yong DIRECTOR
LI Juxing DIRECTOR
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R=ZF-MmF-F-A
EEERIREABNES

FRAR
NEERRRRHERS

KR-T-ZERBRE
(A13)
~HHERAREIHER
BRxARE

EAR

H-F-RERERE
(Fs#13)

—EHBARRE R
BRRZARE

RZF-RF+-A=1-H

At 1 January 2014

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Appropriation for the year

Unclaimed H shares dividend
of prior year

2013 final dividend paid
(Note 13)

Dividend paid by a subsidiary
to its non-controlling
shareholder

At 31 December 2014

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Appropriation for the year

2014 final dividend paid
(Note 13)

Dividend paid by a subsidiary
to its non-controlling
shareholder

At 31 December 2015

(a) EBADNBESFEE—SFHARE
572,206,000 T(ZFT —MF : AR
# 572,206,000 7T) 3%k 1B - FE ALK
EEERBAEREEARAREKTL
AMBERABE(ER)ARAA(E
RER] - MAEERKERARF)
RERAEARAABALRADF
MEEFEUNER-—ALANFE
HE—FH - LA R BB LR FT
% 171,500,000,000 4% ) 6 A R #
1,500,000,0007T 2 B H &5 °

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

RO RERERAEERR

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

EELEE  fELRE FERER
RA&RE EADEE  Statutory Discretionary — REEF Non-
B Share Capital surplus surplus  Retained @ controlling  EHAE
Share capital  premium reserve reserve fund reserve fund profits Total interests Total equity
ANREFT NREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREF1T ARETT AREFT
RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(Wite)  (Wit11)  (Wit12)
(Note (@)~ (Note 11) (Note 12)
2482,268 1,764,905 572,239 908,905 2,347 1639173 7,369,837 297,038 7,666,875
— - — - — 444,549 444,549 4,149 448,698
— — — 44,59 = (44,59%) - — -
= = = = = 1 1 = 1
= = = = = (322,695 (322,6%) —  (322,6%)
= = = = = = = (4,807) (4,807)
2,482,268 1,764,905 572,239 953,501 2347 1716432 7,491,692 296,380 7,788,072
— — — — — 479,887 479,887 5,252 485,139
— - — 47,583 = (47,583 = = =
- - - - = (397,163)  (397,163) —  (397,163)
_ _ - = = — = (3,260) (3,260)
2,482,268 1,764,905 572,239 1,001,084 2,347 1,751,673 7,574,416 298372 17,872,788
Note:
(a) The capital reserve mainly includes an amount of approximately

RMB572,206,000 (2014: RMB572,206,000) which represents the excess of the
value of the net assets immediately before the establishment of the Company
(EE)AMRAF ("Qingling Group” —
ultimate holding company of the Group) and E$2/98BMRAR] as part of the

injected into the Company by E$:7%

reorganisation in 1994 which was approved by the State Administration of State-

owned Assets, over the nominal value of the 1,500,000,000 shares issued upon
establishment of the Company of RMB1,500,000,000.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Share of profit of an associate
Share of results of joint ventures
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Release of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of investment properties
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net foreign exchange (gain) loss

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease (increase) in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables
and prepayments

Decrease (increase) in bills receivable

Increase in restricted bank balances

Increase in trade, bills and other payables

Cash from operations
Income taxes paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

94 EE#55E R % B BR 2 F Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.

Bz
—E-hE
+=A=+-H
LEFE

Year ended

31 December

Bz
—2-mF
+=A=+-H
LFE

Year ended

31 December

2015 2014
ARETT  AEETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
565,449 522,735
(102,928) (97,412)
(278) (269)
(12,257) (16,247)
= 1,297

(769) (2,595)
34,146 77,717
201,571 250,755
13,435 13,144
1,411 1,383
2,209 2,017
1,990 1,324
(994) 3,010
702,985 757,859
237,239 (320,136)
5,312 (51,961)
688,312 (99,934)
(79,999) —
22,149 175,436
1,675,998 461,264
(93,480) (80,144)
1,482,518 381,120




TEHERER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
E-T-AET-AS+—ALEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Bz ¥z
—Z-1F —E-|mE
+ZB=+-B +=ZA=t-H
LEFE LFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
AEEFT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

REER INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BARIEBRBA=(EA 2RITER Placement of bank deposits with original maturity

more than three months (2,865,017) (2,747,001)
RORZEABRA=EA 2RITER Withdrawal of bank deposits with original maturity

more than three months 2,866,999 2,576,604
WEmE BERRE BFEENRBENLHAES  Acquisition of property, plant and equipment,

intangible assets and prepaid lease payments (97,842) (48,633)
MBKA Interest received 105,439 95,327
HEME  BEREEMBHE Proceeds on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 393 41
BAERA AR S Dividends received from a joint venture 8,748 =
RAEERREIINTE Additional capital to a joint venture (52,771) =
REXBMARSFE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (34,051) (123,662)
MEXY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ERRE Dividends paid (397,163) (322,695)
BA—HEREARMIEERBER S Dividends paid to a non-controlling shareholder

of a subsidiary (3,260) (4,807)
WA EEARERHRRE Unclaimed H shares dividend of prior year = 1
MEXEMARETE NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (400,423) (327,501)
ReRBESEEMEM (HD) FE NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,048,044 (70,043)
R-A—-BzHEeRBELEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT 1 JANUARY 1,133,712 1,206,765
DNEHER S v R ERBBNTE Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance

of cash held in foreign currencies 994 (3,010)
RTZA=+t-AZREREELEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

MRTESBRAE AT 31 DECEMBER,
represented by bank balances and cash 2,182,750 1,133,712
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

1. GENERAL

The Company is a sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited
company established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company is 1 Xiexing Cun, Zhong
Liang Shan, Jiu Long Po District, Chongging, the PRC. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
the production and sale of Isuzu light-duty trucks, multi-purposes
vehicles, pick-up trucks, medium and heavy-duty trucks and
automobile parts and accessories.

The parent and ultimate holding company of the Company is
Qingling Group (a state-owned enterprise established in Chongging,
the PRC).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") which is also the functional currency of the Company.

o6 E#SERM AR T Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont’'d)

2. ERHFITREBIEEY 2.
BHREEAN(FEHBR
HEA ) (4

© 8 7 {8 i R 4 22 # AT R R 4g

AEBMBRERER

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

AEEBYERAEATIC BRM
B RERZH ] REEFTER

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

B s A -

ERTHRELE 2T A HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
B 85957

EBMBREE BEEELCEHEL’ HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
Bl Z5 1458

BAENBREE KEEFSA HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
BIIZE155% o &l Customers?

EEVBREE WELBKE Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
BI%115% B 5T HKFRS 11 in Joint Operations'
CCHEN B

EEGTEN  BEAE Amendments to Disclosure Initiative’
EREH HKAS 1
CCHEN

EECHENE BEHERE Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
16 REBEAE HHTES HKAS 16 and Depreciation and Amortisation’
sH#ERIEI8E m ] HKAS 38
CCHEN)

BRI ERE BE - LEM Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer Plants’
6RREBEEE  BEY HKAS 16
AR E 4158 and HKAS 41
SCCHEN)

BAEMBRE

Amendments to

Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HERIE 105 & ENEHAE HKFRS 10 an Investor and its Associate or
BAGHELN QA and HKAS 28 Joint Venture®

52858 & E M E

CCHEN) A’
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont’'d)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements’

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

4 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1

January 2016

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont’'d)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont’d)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

100 EB#5ERM AR T Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.



2. ERHFITREBIEEY
BHREEAN(FEHBR
HEA ) ()

© 8 7 {8 i R 4 22 # AT R R 4g

AEBMBEREER R

BEENBEHRERRFISHERXEEF
F&aX s ()

ARREZHRA: HEREAEE
R EENFEGRAIE S Y
AEESAMBERFPACTE2R
MEBRLBEBENERBRERY
B-AmM RAKETKFARE
MAacBAEEaRE AN BRSE
ERFISRNFZEL FAIIT -

BRIAEFTIIN  RABEFRE
it BAFER - KB ZEA
TeHAREzZEHA M BR
REEAFE -

3. FEETHHEXE

RAVBERRDIZBEE G
RERMOEEFBERE LR
ot RAMBHRREER
BMARZMAERABESR LT
MAT Em AR REFE(R A
fER B> (T2 RHEBY)) 3 5E &9 33 A 3

==

B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont’'d)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a
detailed review.

Other than the above, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the new standard, amendments to standards will
have no material impact on these consolidated financial statements
of the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("CO").

Annual Report 2015 £ ¥§

101



3. FESFEREME

MEE QBRI (F622F) B R
HEBLREEHRERERZGX
EHARBBE_T—HF+=
A=+t —BLEFBRFELER -k
Sh ETHRAIMEBEREFEERA
ZHRBERECSEHQARGHM
& 77 I 75 1tk B2 & B B 15 5 & A
BE—H-El B#E-F—H
F+ZRA=+—RIEMBRFELR
EMBHBRAZEMNZS ME
ETERNBTRZSHAE - A
BEE_FT-NF+-_A=1+—
BLEFHRFREZHEREND RIE
MRENGEVBRRAZI K
WEE - RBAMARIGHH TR
AENEATHRBEEREHN QA
RO HEET ETRUNBEARE
ZER RAREMBHREFTE
BEEE -

iR e WIS HR R T DA TR 52 B AN 18 B
B - ELRA—RARBE m
ERBZREZAABESERE -

ARBEREMSE2EE ZHAE
AERETHNERRZHHESR
EMEBNERABBREMX
NHER ERZEREEER
RIAMBERERRAEMMGE
RMEH M fEEt - At EEXA
BEONAABEE AKEEED
L2REEFERRZREER
EEETEEREEERNAH
BE - EXGEMBHRERRTAE
E/RBEENRAABEIELE
METUEE BFEMHRS
ERF2RBE A AR SER
MRS BEEERF7
FHEEANEERS  ARER
REERLUEL LA BEN
Efm - BB EFFEAE2RE S
WA ZREFEXRTESAENR
365 P M EE) BRI ©

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap
622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’ reports and
audits became effective for the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015. Further, the disclosure requirements
set out in the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have been
amended with reference to the new CO and to streamline with
HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 have been changed to comply with
these new requirements. Comparative information in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based on the new
requirements. Information previously required to be disclosed under
the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the new CO
or amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out as below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of
the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of losses
of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’'s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint
venture, or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified
as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest
in the associate or joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or
an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group, and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress and specialised production
facilities and moulds, over their estimated useful lives after taking
into account of their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method.

Specialised production facilities and moulds which can be identified
in relation to specific production processes are depreciated by
reference to the expected production volume of these facilities and
moulds after taking into account of their estimated residual values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

The estimated useful lives, residual values, the expected production
volume and the depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals.

Investment properties are initially measured at costs, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation
is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

110 BE#5ERM AR T Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.



3. FESFEREME

BREW = ()

EUEAKLIERCAEHAERA
MEBER/RENER  REY
XofFhEE -

EHESIKAFLERREDE
AEM T ERHELZRAMET R
BARREE RS - ZBREDY
XETBERR -THBEAXEBE
FrEEZ EfRaEEE(REE
FERBEFREAZEEZREE
ZEBHBE)EFATBERALRA
BHRAEER -

HE

REEGRREHEERNBRE D
R\ B & [l S E R = A HAMNE
E A ERMEHEENER - M
BHMHEERIGEEEHENE
Bl e

EEBEDLHBEA

KeHENHESWATLZERE
ENHEBUNERERBERTE
R-NpEkcH—HEEHE
RELZNBERKAT G AR
EEEZHREE TRESHU
HEMAEERRBR/MA -

EEBEEBEBEA

KeHERBEREABEEENHED
NE SRR R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investment properties (Cont’d)

For a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment property,
the transfer is made when there is a change in use, evidenced by
end of owner-occupation.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finances lease whenever the terms of lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is released over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income, if any, in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss over the useful lives of the related assets. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt
with as payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
where the Group’s obligations under the plans are equivalent to
those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years, and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associate
and joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary difference
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expensed from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Intangible assets (Cont’d)

Research and development expenditure (Cont’d)

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and

receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees, points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, bills receivables, bank deposits,
restricted bank balances and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables of the Group are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Loans and
receivables are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated
future cash flows of the loans and receivables have been affected.
The objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables such as trade and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Cont’d)

For loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly with the exception of trade receivables and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance
account.

For loans and receivables measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade, bills and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees, points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts
on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derecognition (Cont’d)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

4, KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont'd)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to be incurred
to completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in customer taste or competitor actions in response to
severe consumer product industry cycles. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of the reporting period. As at 31
December 2015, the carrying amount of inventory net of allowance
for obsolete inventories is RMB766,102,000 (net of allowance for
obsolete inventories of RMB88,567,000) (2014: RMB1,037,487,000,
net of allowance for obsolete inventories of RMB77,717,000).

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. The impairment
may arise as a result of changes in debtors’ financial position. As
at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of trade and other
receivables is RMB833,745,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of RMB2,203,000) (2014: carrying amount of RMB829,130,000, net
of allowance for doubtful debts of RMB2,972,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont'd)

Depreciation basis of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than specialised production
facilities and moulds) are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual values. The Group’'s management determines the estimated
useful lives of its property, plant and equipment. The estimates
of useful lives are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge in the
year where the useful lives are less than the previously estimated
lives and will write off technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Specialised production
facilities and moulds are depreciated by reference to the expected
production volume of these facilities and moulds, after taking
into account the estimated residual values. The Group assesses
annually the expected production volume of these facilities and
moulds, taking into account the lifecycle and technical advantage of
products. If the expectation differs from the original estimates, such
differences from the original estimates will impact the depreciation
charges in the current year in which the estimates change and in
future periods.
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e BB R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HILFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

5. Wk#H 5. REVENUE

WmEAEERIIBEFHEHEES Revenue represents revenue arising on goods sold by the Group
MR EE A Z W ES 00 BR AT 40 K 8 to external customers, net of discounts and sales related tax. The
EHERE AEBRNRETEE following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its major
mERKESTAT : products:

gz Bz
—B-5F —E2-@mfF
+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-8H
LFE LFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
AEEFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

HERBERAE Sales of trucks and vehicles 5,257,493 5,384,949
HERBET LM Sales of automobile parts and accessories 246,803 415,129

5,504,296 5,800,078
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sales of five
categories of products — light-duty trucks, multi-purposes vehicles,
pick-up trucks, medium and heavy-duty trucks and automobile
parts and accessories and the chief operating decision makers
(e.g. the Company's executive directors) also review the segment
information by these categories to allocate resources to segments
and to assess their performance.

Principal business segments are as follows:

Light-duty trucks — manufacture and sales of
light-duty trucks

Multi-purposes vehicles ~ — manufacture and sales of
multi-purposes vehicles

Pick-up trucks — manufacture and sales of
pick-up trucks

Medium and — manufacture and sales of medium

heavy-duty trucks and heavy-duty trucks

Automobile parts — manufacture and sales of automobile

and accessories parts and accessories
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e MKW NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T—ARAF+_-_A=+—HILFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
6. DEHERE) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(i) oBREREE (i) Segment revenue and results
AEBWZREBLREES D The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
wmr operating segment:
BE-_Z—RF+-_A=+—8H For the year ended 31 December 2015
EFE
e
SPRARE THRERE  BHRHH
aAERE Multi- K+E Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty  purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and &8
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated

ANRETT  AEEFT  AEETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

2 ElEs Segment revenue 2,874,311 32,746 1,344,418 1,005,988 246,803 5,504,296
E4 Result

PEFE Segment profit 282,579 4,048 145,211 29,999 36,135 497,972
EMmERER Central administration costs (96,606)
FIEBMA Interest income 102,928
A Other income 54,806
EFIEREXTE Other gains and losses, net 6,186)
PEEE R REF Share of profit of an associate 278
PMEASNREE Share of results of joint ventures 12,257
REERHAET Group's profit before tax 565,449
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(i) oDWK=HRFEEE)

BE_ZT-OF+_-_A=+—H
LFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(i) Segment revenue and results (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

AE

SPRARE THRERE  BHRHH

BHERE Multi- KFE Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty  purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and &8
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated
AREFT  AREFr AREFr AREFr AREFr AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B lie Segment revenue 2,791,639 29359 1263066 1310985 415129 5,800,078

E3 Result

DEHE Segment profit 210,505 1433 121,544 112,157 2,022 447861
EMEEEH Central administration costs 82,596)
FEMA Interest income 97,412
HiA Other income 26,765
H wHEREXFE Other gains and losses, net 17,777
PMEBE R ARR Share of profit of an associate 269
PEAENAEE Share of results of joint ventures 15,247
REERFATRF Group's profit before tax 522,735

e R
L% FE AR D BRI B (=T —
BRI

LENMBZ A BREAFH N
SHAKEEFTHREMBER - 2 &
MBEEZDRABRERZAME - M
TEIEETEEER  FMBK
ACHMBKRA - EMHEREX
FE D 153‘9"‘”"7@%‘J& o]
BERAEE HHIATELE
RREBEADEBERRFMHEE
mzFERA -

There have been no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit
represents the profit earned from each segment without allocation
of central administration costs, interest income, other income, other
net gains and losses, share of profit of an associate and share of
results of joint ventures. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision makers for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment.
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B5

7 The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(ii)

operating segment:

At 31 December 2015

Segment assets and liabilities

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

AE
SYERE PHERERNE  BHREH
BEHAE Multi- K+E Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and GE
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated
AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Assets
Segment assets 1,844,338 435,330 324,924 911,923 553,980 4,070,495
Interchangeably used assets
between segments
— property, plant and equipment 190,865
— prepaid lease payments 42,208
— inventories 157,382
Investment properties 34917
Interest in an associate 6,844
Interests in joint ventures 470,860
Restricted bank balances, bank deposits
and bank balances 5,066,042
Other unallocated assets 180,560
Consolidated total assets 10,210,173
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 305,768 3291 148,651 81,390 - 539,100
Unallocated trade, bills and other payables 1,778,671
Other unallocated liabilities 19,614
Consolidated total liabilities 2,337,385
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(ii)

At 31 December 2014

Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

AE
SUERE PHERERNE  BHREH
BEHAE Multi- K+E Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and G&
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated
AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Assets
Segment assets 2,311,139 24,19 923,738 1,470,773 159,275 4,889,119
Interchangeably used assets
between segments
— property, plant and equipment 455,457
— prepaid lease payments 43,426
— inventories 226,530
Investment properties 38,318
Interest in an associate 6,566
Interests in joint ventures 414,581
Bank deposits and bank balances 3,931,498
Other unallocated assets 175,065
Consolidated total assets 10,180,560
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 258,678 1,252 77,783 66,531 15,435 419,679
Unallocated trade, bills and other payables 1,941,537
Other unallocated liabilities 31,272
Consolidated total liabilities 2,392,488
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e MKW NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZEZ—RFE+-_A=1+—HItEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

6. oEER(E) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’'d)

(i) »7WBEEREEE) (ii) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)
BERSBEBERSEDIBEIR For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

s MEBEEBEEANTEZZED

BoESBzEERAEE e Al assets are allocated to operating segments other than
Txﬁ%% REE R 2 interchangeably used assets between segments, investment
REERAIZHERD % properties, interest in an associate, interests in joint ventures,

BE RIERITHEBR C BITTER R restricted bank balances, bank deposits and bank balances and
RITHEB L EMBAENRF other unallocated assets held by the head office; and
B2 RA DB 2 BIRBRON
53

e FEBEBANERZEZLESD e All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
B MR A o B2 FE T ER than unallocated trade, bills and other payables and other
A BT R B & OE At FE R unallocated liabilities of the head office.
BRERNE 2 HMAA 5
BEBRIN o
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(iii) Other segment information

OTHER INFORMATION
Amount included in the measure
of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:
Additions to property,
plant and equipment

Additions to prepaid lease payments

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment
properties
Release of prepaid lease payments

OTHER INFORMATION
Amount included in the measure
of segment profit or loss or
segment assets:
Additions to property,
plant and equipment
Additions to investment properties
Additions to intangible assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment
properties
Release of prepaid lease payments

For the year ended 31 December 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

AE

SYERE TRRENE  BHRBG

BHERE Multi- KFE Mediumand Automobile
Light-duty  purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty  parts and FILE Ge
trucks vehicles trucks trucks accessories Unallocated ~Consolidated
ANEREFT  AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2,997 45 2,138 16,295 — 1,773 33,248
— — — — — 193 193
— — — 10,325 — 3,110 13,435
51,194 620 29,148 102,989 2,676 14,944 201,571
— — — — — 2,209 2,209
— — — — — 1411 1,411

For the year ended 31 December 2014

AE

SWEERE PHRERE  BAREH

BHERE Multi- KF&E Mediumand Automobile
Light-duty  purposes Pick-up heavy-duty parts and TSR &a
trucks vehicles trucks trucks accessories Unallocated Consolidated
ANRETFT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
3,426 — 259 20,420 — 3,575 27,680
— — — — — 1,313 1,313
— — — 119,968 — — 119,968
2,892 444 444 9,364 - - 13,144
92,415 — 41,147 113,998 3,195 — 250,755
— — — — — 2,017 2,017
- — — — — 1,383 1,383
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(iv) HEDH

N &£ @ EE A R1,439,532,000
T(Z T — W F AR ¥
1,5671,765,000 L) 2 E R 8 & &=
(BRETERREEHEELEMN
SN EEEFER  AEBEZBK
DHENETFANRFBEAZEF -
AEBEFRARPERIIEKIEL
LEROHEE HAEEKRALY
0.33% (=T —MF :0.39%) °

REELAARMEZINEREZSD
MEELRREZYE  BERR
W ANLTHhES REWEN
MEREEDEENTE -

(v) ERXERFZEH

REXRESEREMNBARRER
AT+HR(EBE)EHRER QA
([BRATREIDE] I BIE
BN E P AL & E KL
AN0%H A E - B E_T—AF
+ZA=+—HLEFE KEE
REBREWNBRARAZKABA
R #1,643,508,000 70 (= & — Y
#£ . AR #1,830,443,0007T) &
REBERATHRESE WAL
A R #890,576,000 71 (— & — 1
£ AR#734,011,0007T) °

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
(iv) Geographical information

Non-current assets (excluding bank deposits and deferred tax
assets) of the Group amounting to RMB1,439,532,000 (2014
RMB1,571,765,000) are located in the PRC and substantially all of
the sales of the Group are also made to customers located in the
PRC. The Group has made limited export sales to countries outside
the PRC which accounted for approximately 0.33% (2014: 0.39%) of
the Group's revenue.

All of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments, investment
properties and intangible assets are located in the PRC for both
years presented.

(v) Information about major customers

No revenue from a single external customer other than Qingling
Group and its subsidiaries and BESX A T8 (EE) ZEEEERA A
(“Qingling Isuzu Engine”) contributed 10% or more of the Group's
revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2015, revenue from
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,643,508,000
(2014: RMB1,830,443,000) and revenue from Qingling Isuzu Engine
amounted to RMB890,576,000 (2014: RMB734,011,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Bz Bz
—E-1f —E-OF
+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-8H
LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

ARETFT AREFT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

Current tax charge 81,822 83,970
Deferred tax credit (Note 21) (1,512) (9,933)
80,310 74,037

According to the Notice of the Enterprise Income Tax for
Implementation of Exploration and Development of Western Region
(Notice of the State Administration of Taxation No. 12 [2012])
and the Catalogue of Industries Encouraged to Develop in the
Western Region (Order of the National Development and Reform
Commission No. 15), companies located in the western region
of the PRC and engaged in the business encouraged by the PRC
government are entitled to the preferential enterprise income tax
("EIT") rate of 15% if the operating revenue of the encouraged
business in the current year accounted for more than 70% of the
total income. The Company and BEEEHREEGRE AR (“Qingling
Moulds"),
encouraged businesses included in the related notice and catalogue

a subsidiary of the Company, are engaged in the

and the total revenue of its major business for the year accounted
for 70% of its total revenue, and therefore continue to enjoy the
preferential EIT rate of 15% for the year.

HFEBHEM DL ("Qingling Technical Center”), a subsidiary of the
Company, is subject to EIT rate of 256% (2014: 25%) for the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled

to the profit

before tax per consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

Bz
ZE-Rf
+=A=+-7
LEE

Year ended

31 December

Bz
“E-mE
+=A=+-8
LEE

Year ended

31 December

2015 2014
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
Profit before tax 565,449 522,735
Tax at the applicable income tax rate
of 15% (2014: 15%) 84,817 78,410
Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 35 298
Additional tax benefit applicable to
the Group (note) (2,731) (1,791)
Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary 69 136
Effect of share of profit of an associate (42) (40)
Effect of share of results of joint ventures (1,838) (2,287)
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences
previously not recognised o (689)
Tax charge for the year 80,310 74,037

Note: Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulation, expenses in research nature

are deductible at 50% of the cost incurred additionally. The related tax benefit
is amounted to RMB2,731,000 (2014: RMB1,791,000) for the year ended 31

December 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

8. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group has a service agreement with its ultimate holding
company, Qingling Group, whereby the Group will reimburse the
contributions made by Qingling Group to a defined contribution
pension scheme administered by the municipal government in
respect of the staff of the Group. According to such scheme, the
Company shall pay an amount annually, calculated at a percentage
of the total wages of the staff, to a retirement fund administered
by the municipal government. The amount paid during the year
under such arrangement amounted to RMB31,329,000 (2014:
RMB20,939,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

9. KRBLATERF

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

¥z g
“E-1% —E-MmF
+=A=+-B +ZA=1+-H
ILEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
AREFT  AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
BRI MR - Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:
HeREMRREE Salaries and other payments and benefits 176,585 145,278
RIABFIF IR Retirement benefits scheme contributions 31,329 20,939
BETRA (REEERESHE) Total staff costs (including directors’ and
(KzE10) supervisors' remuneration (note 10)) 207,914 166,217
HENE  BEREEBR Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,990 1,324
EVEESE (B ABEEMK) Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales) 13,435 13,144
W% BERSENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 201,571 250,755
REMETE Depreciation of investment properties 2,209 2,017
BT EEH Release of prepaid lease payments 1,41 1,383
KERENEREESR B SERENR Minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of rented premises and
production facilities 40,668 35,963
BRAXHZFERE Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 4,476,437 4,926,202
ZEmME Auditor's remuneration 3,468 3,468
ATHRMUA Write-down of inventories 34,146 77,717
[ B EFE Net foreign exchange loss 4,196 ==
REEA and after crediting:
HEERIA Sales of scrap materials 1,156 487
MBKA Interest income 102,928 97,412
HIEREME 2 WA Income from renting of investment properties 6,269 5,879
Nk - FEREERERAZRENE Less: Direct operating expenses from investment
EEERER properties that generated rental income
during the year (1,913) (1,803)
HHEEARTAREZHMA Income from renting of moulds and
tooling equipment 39,077 39,077
B8 Government grant 2,803 664
BRI FE Net foreign exchange gain == 19,101
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10. E5 ESRTHAIM
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E:Xis £ Executive directors
ABR-F-RFRR-T\REZf) HE Yong (appointed on 28 May 2015)
HEE-H(R-Z-RFRA-T/\BEZM) Keichio MAEGAKI (appointed on 28 May 2015)
HER(R-F-RERA-TNAEE) DU Weidong [resigned on 28 May 2015)
RER GAO Jianmin
EB(WN-F-RF=P=THED) PAN Yong (resigned on 20 March 2015)
B Makoto TANAKA
gRI ZENG Jianjiang
REG(R-Z-RE=A-+HEH) Naotoshi TSUTSUMI

(resigned on 20 March 2015)

REES(R-F-ZERAZT/\ABAE)  Masashi HARADA resigned on 28 May 2015)

~RERAZTNBEEME) Naoto HAKAMATA (appointed on 28 May 2015)

E(RZT-RERA-TNBEEZME)  LlJuxng lappointed on 28 May 2015)

BudnEs Independent non-executive directors
EE LONG Tao
RINL SONG Xiaojiang
BREM-F-RERA-THER) XU Bingjin (resigned on 20 May 2015)
EN LIU Tienni
Y-R(M-F-RETA-TN\BEZM) LU Eh Fei (appointed on 28 May 2015)

EEHe
RE
RA(R
BER(

Wiz

Supervisors' remuneration
MIN Qing
Z3-RFRR-TN\BEH) ZHOU Hong [resigned on 28 May 2015)
LEI Bin
R-E-RERA-TNEHERE)  GUAN Jinming [appointed on 28 May 2015)

TMERSDH2EEFENERNRRE
o AMFMEES(H—RBBTE
ERMEBLFERTEEAR#
¥ o

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

10.

Re

Fee
NEHTFT
RMB'000

Note:

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

HECR-RELCACT-ALER BECR-MET-AST-ALER
Year ended 31 December 2015 Year ended 31 December 2014
Hikge hERE
() BiER (i) EHEA
H&R  Performance SHER #&R  Performance big 5
LT related  Retirement AR related  Retirement
Salaries incentive benefit Salaries incentive benefit
andother  payments scheme @i &  andother  payments scheme it
benefits (note) ~ contributions Total Fee benefits (note]  contributions Total

ARETE  ARETR  ARETT  ARETZ  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT ARETZ
AVBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBOO)  RMBTOO  AMBOO  AMBOOD  AMBO0D

m = 9 286 S S S S o
— — 9 9 — — — — —
180 = 7 187 = 43 = 1 444
39 = 16 408 S n S 12 383
= = 4 4 = n = 1 383
= = 9 9 S 27 S S 267
393 = 16 409 S 508 S 1 520
— — 7 7 — — — — —
— — 9 9 — — — — —
238 = 9 247 S S o o =
1480 = 9 1679 S 1949 S 4 1997
= = — 120 120 = = = 120
= = S 120 120 S S S 120
= = S 50 120 = = = 120
= = S 120 120 S S S 120
— — — 0 — — — — —
= = S 480 480 S o o 480
4 % 16 152 S 4 96 1 149
= = 7 7 = 19 4 8 n
38 88 16 142 S 3 88 1 138
% 56 9 89 = = = = =
103 239 48 3% S 9% 08 32 358
1583 239 147 2449 480 2,047 28 80 2,835

The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference to the
individual performance of the supervisors and approved by the Remuneration
Committee (composed of an executive director and four independent non-
executive directors).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI (upon appointment as a director) and
Makoto TANAKA (before Keiichiro MAEGAKI's appointment as a
director) are General Manager of the Company and also assume the
role as the Chief Executive of the Company and their emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by them as the
Chief Executive.

Mr. ZENG Jianjiang is also the Deputy General Manager of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Deputy General Manager.

No directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: Nil).

All the five highest paid individuals of the Group for both years were
directors.

11. TRANSFER TO STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

The statutory surplus reserve fund represents the appropriation
of 10% of profit after tax for the year of the Company, calculated
in accordance with relevant Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises in the PRC (“PRC GAAP") and the Articles of
Association of the Company. The appropriation may cease to apply if
the balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund has reached 50%
of the registered capital of the Company. According to the Articles
of Association of the Company, statutory surplus reserve fund can
be used to make up prior year losses or to increase capital. The
Company may capitalise the statutory surplus reserve fund by way
of bonus issues provided that the remaining amount of statutory
surplus reserve fund after such distribution shall not be less than
25% of the registered capital of the Company. The amount shall be
submitted to shareholders’ general meeting for approval.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

12. TRANSFER TO DISCRETIONARY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

No amount was appropriated to the discretionary reserve fund in
2015 (2014: Nil). The balance of RMB2,347,000 in the discretionary
reserve fund was the amount appropriated by a subsidiary, Qingling
Moulds, in previous years at a percentage of the profit after tax of
the respective years in accordance with PRC GAAP and Articles of
Association of Qingling Moulds.

13. DIVIDENDS

BZ BZE
—E-1F “E-mE
+ZA=1+-H t=R=t+-AH
LEFE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
AEEFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
2014 Final, paid
— RMB0.16 (2014: 2013 Final,
paid — RMB0.13) per share
397,163 322,695

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
RMB397,163,000 or RMBO0.16 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: final dividend of RMB397,163,000
or RMBO0.16 per share in respect of the year ended 31 December
2014) has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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e BB R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T—ARAF+_-_A=+—HILFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

14. BREF 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

ARG ERBBEARBEERAER The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
BFBRETIERGTE owners of the Company is based on the following data:

B F Earnings

gz Bz
—B-5F —E2-@mfF
+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-8H
LFE LFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
B E SRERRR 2 BF| Eamnings for the purpose of basic eamings
(ARAlEREEABGERREH) per share (Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company) 479,887 444,549
BR&oEE Number of shares
ES Bz
—E-5f “E-lmF
+=ZA=+-B +ZA=1+-AH
LEE LFEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
FR FR
‘000 ‘000
BRFTESREARF 2 BHEE Number of shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share 2,482,268 2,482,268
A EFE W \EEMBEITEIINZ There were no potential ordinary shares outstanding in both years
AREEX#ETE  EBRKR - presented.
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RZF-RFt-A=1-H

COST

At 1 January 2014

Additions

Transfer from construction
in progress

Disposals

At 31 December 2014

Additions

Transfer from construction
in progress

Disposals

At 31 December 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2014

Depreciation provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2014

Depreciation provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2015

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2015

BE.  Gh-%E
RERKE &
Moulds,  Furniture, e TEIR
BF  plantand fixtures and Motor Construction @t
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
ANEETT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFX
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
639,257 3,769,272 68,643 32,038 23,290 4,532,500
— 18 - 188 21,474 27,680
— 16,769 — — (16,769) —
— (5,860) (619) (6,293) = (12,772)
639,257 3,780,199 68,024 25,933 33,995 4,547,408
— 576 - 1,026 31,646 33,248
2,693 9,977 — 195 (12,865) =
(278) (230,230) (124) (5,821) = (236,453)
641,672 3,560,522 67,900 21,333 52,776 4,344,203
358,242 2,944,036 64,188 21,802 — 3383268
25,568 222,582 1,016 1,589 — 250,755
= (5,291) (557) (5,559) = (11,407)
383810 3161327 64647 17,832 — 3627616
25409 173639 832 1,601 — W
(194 (28521) (1) (5,244) — (234070
409,025 3,106,445 65,368 14,279 —  35%,117
255,447 618,872 3,377 8,101 33,9% 919,792
232,647 454,077 2,532 7,054 52,776 749,086
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress and specialised production facilities and
moulds, are depreciated on a straight-line basis based on their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual value, as follows:

Estimated Residual
useful lives value
Buildings 20 years 10%
Moulds, plant and machinery 5to 10 years 10%
(other than specialised
production facilities and
moulds)
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 10%
Motor vehicles 5 years 10%

Specialised production facilities and moulds included in moulds,
plant and machinery which can be identified in relation to specific
production processes are depreciated by reference to the expected
production volume of these facilities and moulds. Other moulds,
plant and machinery which are for general production purposes are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
of 5 to 10 years.

As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of moulds and
machinery that has been leased out was RMB93,170,000 (2014:
RMB184,900,000).

As at 31 December 2015, moulds, plant and machinery with original
cost of RMB3,323,373,000 (2014: RMB2,290,623,000) have been
fully depreciated but still in use.
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mEMBEHRRMNTE NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-T-AFT-A=t—HLFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

16. FEF LA S 16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

R=2-1% R=F-BF
t=A=t-R t=A=+-H

At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

ABETT — AREFIL
RMB'000 RMB'000

AEEMBEA RS aE: The Group's prepaid lease payments represent:
AR AR ER 1t 5 A Land use right in the PRC hold under
medium-term 42,208 43,426
REREMEANAE Analysis for reporting purpose as:
FERBDEE Non-current asset 40,795 42,043
MEEE Current asset 1,413 1,383

42,208 43,426
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

R-B-1F RZZ-0OF
2015 2014
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

COST

At 1 January 147,107 145,794
Addition — 1,313
Adjustment for over accruals for previous addition (1,192) —
At 31 December 145,915 147,107
DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 108,789 106,772
Depreciation provided for the year 2,209 2,017
At 31 December 110,998 108,789
CARRYING VALUES

At 31 December 34,917 38,318

The above investment properties are situated in the PRC held under
medium term leases and are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over 20 years, after taking into account the estimated residual value
of 10%.

The fair value of the investment properties cannot be reliably
measured as the comparable market transactions are infrequent and
alternative reliable estimates are not available.
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e B R ME NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-—T-—AG&+-_A=+—BItFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
18. BLEE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
EEERAG
RiiEEE Production
Technology management h
transfer fees system Total
NEETT ANEEFT ANEEFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BA COST
R-Z—MFE—F—H At 1 January 2014 285,593 31,090 316,683
RE Additions 119,968 = 119,968
RZZ—NF At 31 December 2014 and 2015
k=_F-RF+-A=1-AH 405,561 31,090 436,651
B AMORTISATION
RZE—NF—A—A At 1 January 2014 273,042 = 273,042
FEES Provided for the year 10,035 3,109 13,144
RZE—NE+-A=+—H At 31 December 2014 283,077 3,109 286,186
FEEE Provided for the year 10,326 3,109 13,435
RZE-RF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2015 293,403 6,218 299,621
BREE CARRYING VALUES
RZE—NE+-A=+—H At 31 December 2014 122,484 27,981 150,465
RZE-RF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2015 112,158 24,872 137,030
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

Payments of technology transfer fees, lump sum royalties under
technology transfer agreements with Isuzu Motors Limited
("Isuzu”), the substantial shareholder of the Company, are
capitalised as intangible assets and are amortised over the license
period ranging from ten years to thirteen years, commencing from
the use of the technologies in production. Continuing royalties
payable to Isuzu under the technology transfer agreements are
charged to profit or loss as and when incurred.

The production management system has an estimated useful life
of ten years and is expected to generate economic benefits to the
Company in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2015, intangible assets with an original cost of
RMB271,333,000 in aggregate (2014: RMB271,333,000) have been
fully amortised but still in use.
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Name of entity Form of entity

AHiRER (EE) s
BRI Incorporated
BRAA

( [RT8ER

B )
EHRER (EE)

BRI

BRAA

( “Isuzu Qingling

Engineering” )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.

Cost of investment in an associate, unlisted
Share of post-acquisition profit of an associate

EMRIHE FEEENH
Place of Principal place

establishment of operation

FE
The PRC

i
The PRC

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Details of the Group’s interest in an associate are as follows:

R-B-EF R-F-OF
t=A=t-8 t=A=t-H
At At

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
ANEETT AEETT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
6,333 6,333

511 233

6,844 6,566

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had an interest in the
following associate:

rEERE
IR BEZ
Proportion ZRELL Bl
of equity Portion of FEH
interests held  voting power Principle
by the Group held activities
25% 26%  FfiTRE
Technical
development

Annual Report 2015 £ %§

151



19. REEE QR 2SR (E)

REBBLARZHEERBE
HYMT

MBEE
FRBEE
mBAE
FRBAME
EEFE

ARERAPHAERELD

TEENEBMENREEFE

W

FRRTI RS RS ER

FREBEDAYRERE

AEEDEHE

AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
associate is set out below:
R-EB-1F RZB-0OF
+=ZA=+t—-B +=A=t+-H
At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
Current assets 26,325 28,621
Non-current assets 3,556 2,341
Current liabilities (2,485) (4,695)
Non-current liabilities (19) =
Net assets 27,377 26,267
Proportion of the Group's ownership
interest therein 25% 25%
Group's share of net assets of an associate 6,844 6,566
Bz Bz
—E-5f —E-mF
+=A=+-B +ZA=1+-AH
LEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
AREFTT ANEEFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
Revenue 13,313 14,813
Total profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 1,110 1,077
Dividend received from the associate
during the year — —
Group's share of profit of an associate 278 269
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Group’s investments in joint ventures are as follows:

R-ZE-1F RIE-NF

+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-8H

At At

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

ANEETT AEETT

RMB’'000 RMB’000

Cost of investment in joint ventures, unlisted 368,545 315,774
Share of post-acquisition results of joint ventures 102,315 98,807
470,860 414,581

Qingling Isuzu Engine was established in May 2007, and is
principally engaged in manufacture of engines and relevant
parts. The registered capital is US$84,260,000, and the Company
contributed US$42,130,000, approximately RMB300,060,000 to
Qingling Isuzu Engine. Each of the Company and Isuzu held 50% of
its issued capital respectively.

BHRATR (BEE) AEHEERBAERLT ("Qingling Isuzu Sales”)
was established in September 2008, and is principally engaged in
the purpose of selling of Isuzu brand automobiles and parts. The
registered capital is US$4,600,000, and the Company contributed
US$2,300,000, approximately RMB15,714,000 to Qingling Isuzu
Sales. In 2015, each of the Company and Isuzu contributed
additional capital US$8,150,000, approximately RMB52,771,000, to
Qingling Isuzu Sales. Each of the Company and Isuzu held 50% of
its paid-up registered capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)

RZE—REFER_ZE—NF+= As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had interests in the
A=4+—8 XEERTIEZE following joint ventures:
EREEER
rEBEREZ
Rl BEZ

EREERS Proportion ZRLH

Form of IR FEEEHY of equity  Proportion of
EREE business Place of Principal place  interests held  voting power FTEX
Name of entity structure establishment of operation by the group held  Principal activities
B THREES EalipAva il FE 50% 50% BB RARREE A
Qingling Isuzu Engine  Incorporated The PRC The PRC S

Manufacture

BRATHRHE AL i
The PRC

Qingling Isuzu Sales  Incorporated

EELENREREAAKEE
BRESHKEEERXRAAKER
RHBE N BB B E ARG

TERELE UM BENEM

AEEZITBRARLLEZHMBE
BB ZEF T - T 58 % & #
BMEEERBR BV KRS LA
REZAELEVBRRMZD

of engines and
relevant parts

i 50% 50% HELTRIE
The PRC R b
Selling of Isuzu
brand
automobiles
and parts

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of joint ventures
to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay
loans or advances made by the Group.

Summarised financial information of the joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.
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e B R ME NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZEZ—RFE+-_A=1+—HItEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
20. AEEBLE R A 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont'd)
B E T8 e Qingling Isuzu Engine

R-Z-1F RIZE-HNF
+=BA=+-B +=A=t+-H

At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

ABETT — AREFIL
RMB'000 RMB'000

MENEE Current assets 734,179 692,646
ERBEE Non-current assets 199,740 207,349
REBaE Current liabilities (111,340) (99,262)
il EEREESERENTEE The above amounts of assets and liabilities
include the following:

BeRBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 65,222 72,272
TRBNBAE (TEEENERREMY Current financial labilities (excluding trade and

ER FIER ) other payables and provision) — —
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e BB R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZEZ—RFE+-_A=1+—HItEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
20, REEDE R (H) 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)
BRA+REE®(E) Qingling Isuzu Engine (Cont’d)
8= S
—E-EF —E-E
t=A=t+-R t=A=+-H
IEEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
ANREFT ANREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
hen Revenue 1,333,662 1,405,358
FRRH RGEKEEE Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 39,342 33,244
BERATREDEIEMMERE Dividend received from Qingling Isuzu Engine 8,748 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)

Qingling Isuzu Engine (Cont’d)

The above profit for the year include the following:

Bz
ZE-Rf
+=A=+-7
LEE

Year ended

31 December

Bz
“E-mE
+=A=+-8
LEE

Year ended

31 December

2015 2014

AEREFT AEBFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Depreciation and amortisation 43,623 37,934
Interest income 12,616 12,069
Income tax expense 7,088 6,430

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in Qingling Isuzu Engine recognised

in the consolidated financial statements:

R-E-1F

+=ZA=1+-H

At

31 December

2015

ANEETFT

RMB’000

Net assets of Qingling Isuzu Engine 822,579
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest

in Qingling Isuzu Engine 50%

Adjustments for unrealised profit (2,228)

Carrying amount of the Group's interest
in Qingling Isuzu Engine 409,061

R-Z-ME
+=A=1+-H
At

31 December
2014
AEETT
RMB’000

800,733

50%
2,791

403,158
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e BB R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZEZ—RFE+-_A=1+—HItEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
20. AEEBLE R A 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont'd)
BRA+REE Qingling Isuzu Sales

R-Z-1F RIZE-HNF
+=BA=+-B +=A=t+-H

At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

ABETT — AREFIL
RMB'000 RMB'000

RBEE Current assets 119,683 14,667
ERBEE Non-current assets 7,509 8,534
mEaE Current liabilities (4,146) (908)
il EEREESERENTEE The above amounts of assets and
liabilities include the following:

BeLBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 111,525 5,112
TBNBEaE (TEREENERK Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and

HAn R FUR L) other payables and provision) = —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)

Qingling Isuzu Sales (Cont’d)

gz
—E-IF
+=A=+-H
LFE

Year ended

31 December

Bz
—E2-@mfF
+=A=+-H
LFE

Year ended

31 December

2015 2014

ARETFT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Revenue 18,283 18,687

Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year (4,789) (4,650)

Dividend received from Qingling Isuzu Sales — —
The above profit for the year include the following:

8z Bz

—B-4F “E-mF

tT=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H

LFE LFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December

31 December

2015 2014

ARETT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Depreciation and amortisation 9 676
Interest income 17 288

Income tax expense —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)

Qingling Isuzu Sales (Cont’d)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in Qingling Isuzu Sales recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

R-B-EF R-F-OF

+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-8H

At At

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

ANEETT  ARETFT

RMB’'000 RMB’000

Net assets of Qingling Isuzu Sales 123,046 22,293
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest

in Qingling Isuzu Engine 50% 50%

Adjustments for unrealised profit 276 276

Carrying amount of the Group's interest
in Qingling Isuzu Sales 61,799 11,423
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BE-T-AF+-A=1+—-HLLFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
21, EERIBEEE 21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

NTFAREERAKEED R
ITEEEHAAERENE

RZE—NF—F—H At 1 January 2014
JINEERIUN Credit to profit or loss

RZE—NF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2014
RER (FIKB) A (Charge) credit to profit or loss

RZE-RF+-RA=+—H At 31 December 2015

movements thereon during the current year:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and

nE¥ - BER
FEWURR REBRE
REFE Impairment
Impairment MEZE  on property,
loss on trade Write-down of plant and @t
receivables inventories equipment Total
AREFT AREFT ARETFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
— 2,171 128 2,299
446 9,487 — 9,933
446 11,658 128 12,232
(115) 1,627 o 1,512
331 13,285 128 13,744
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

22. INVENTORIES

RIE-7FE RIZ-HNF
+=B=+-HB +t=A=+-H

At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

ABETT — AREFIL
RMB'000 RMB'000

Raw materials 511,276 702,484
Work in progress 93,252 98,647
Finished goods 250,141 314,073

854,669 1,115,204
Less: write-down of inventories (88,567) (77,717)

766,102 1,037,487

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS

At the end of reporting period, the Group's trade and other
receivables and prepayments are as follows:

R=%-1F R=-F-NF
tT=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H

At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

ABETT — AREFIL
RMB'000 RMB'000

Trade receivables, less allowance

for doubtful debts 821,649 819,634
Other receivables 12,096 9,596
Prepayments 39,247 48,405

872,992 877,535
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Before accepting any new external customers, the Group uses an
external credit scoring system to assess the potential customer'’s
credit quality and assign credit limits thereto. Limits and scoring
attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. 99% (2014
99%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have the best credit scoring attributable under the external credit
scoring system used by the Group.

The average credit period granted on sales of goods is from 3 to 6
months.

At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of the Group's
trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented
based on invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which
approximated the respective revenue recognition dates, is as

follows:
R-B-1F R-F-BE
+=ZR=+-B +=ZA=t-H
At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
ANEETT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Within 3 months 610,156 475,321
Between 3 to 6 months 153,379 274,118
Between 7 to 12 months 5,020 16,364
Between 110 2 years 10,073 49,133
Over 2 years 43,021 4,598
821,649 819,634
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Included in the Group’s trade and other receivables and
prepayments at the end of the reporting period are amounts due
from related parties, which are trade in nature, as follows:

R=%-1F R=-F-NF
tT=A=1-A t=A=t+-*H

At At

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

ANEETT AEETT

RMB’'000 RMB’000

Qingling Group 680,962 684,544

Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 80,393 61,755

Isuzu Qingling Engineering 2,072 3,264

Qingling Isuzu Sales 2,727 —

IHRER (EE) AEZHHERAA

("Isuzu Qingling Autoparts”, an associate

of Qingling Group) 18,390 14,407

Isuzu 14 —

784,558 763,960

The above amounts due from related parties are unsecured and
interest-free.

As at 31 December 2015, trade and other receivables of
RMB2,697,000 (2014: RMB4,298,000) and RMB Nil (2014:
RMB20,000) were denominated in Japanese Yen (“JPY") and
United States Dollar (“USD") respectively, other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Included in prepayments is an amount of approximately
RMB29,797,000 (2014: RMB43,483,000) related to the advance
payment to independent suppliers of steel.

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB58,114,000 (2014
approximately RMB70,095,000) which are past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss, of which RMB42,531,000 (2014: approximately
RMBb55,451,000) is due from subsidiaries of Qingling Group. The
Group does not consider any risk on subsequent collections, and all
of these receivables are expected to be settled in the coming year.
The Group does not hold any collaterals over these balances.

Aged analysis of trade receivables of the Group which are past due
but not impaired, net of allowances, is as follows:

R-E-RF RZE-DNE
+-R=+-B +t=ZA=+-H

At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
AEEFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

Overdue by:
1 to 6 months 5,020 16,364
6to 1 year 10,073 49,518
Over 1 year 43,021 4,213
58,114 70,095
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

R=2-1% R=F-BF
t=A=t+-R t=A=+-H

At At

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

ANEETT  ARETFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Balance at beginning of the year 2,972 4,595

Impairment losses recognised on receivables — 1,297
Amounts written off during the year

as uncollectible (769) (325)

Impairment losses reversed — (2,595)

Balance at end of the year 2,203 2,972

Allowance for doubtful debts are provided for individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of RMB2,203,000
(2014: RMB2,972,000) which are in financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

24. BILLS RECEIVABLE

At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of bills

receivable of the Group is as follows:

R-B-EF R-F-OF

+=A=+-B +=A=t-H

At At

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

ANEETT AEETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Within 1 month 646,923 552,449
Between 1 to 2 months 359,705 434,626
Between 2 to 3 months 275,054 416,999
Between 3 to 6 months 778,666 1,344,586
2,060,348 2,748,660

All the above bills receivable are guaranteed by banks and their

maturity dates are within 6 months.

25. BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY MORE

THAN THREE MONTHS

The fixed bank deposits are with a term of 12 to 24 months (31
December 2014: from 6 to 12 months) and carried interest rates
ranging from 0.80% to 3.35% (31 December 2014: from 0.80% to

3.30%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2015, fixed bank deposits of RMB5,520,000

(2014: RMB5,201,000) were denominated in USD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

26. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES, BANK BALANCES

AND CASH

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.0001% to 0.35% (2014: 0.0001% to 0.35%) per annum. The bank
balances and cash that are denominated in currencies other than

the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out

below:
R-B-EF R-F-OF
+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-8H
At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
ANEETT AEETT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
JPY 15,182 27,481
usb 3,228 5,677
European Dollar (“EUR") 13 1,818
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") 50 1,340
Great British Pound (“GBP") 3 3
18,476 36,319

Restricted bank balances

The balances have been frozen since 16 August 2015 according to

the civil ruling issued by People’'s Court of Futian District, Shenzhen,

Guangdong Province (the “Futian Court”) in relation to a dispute in

respect of a financial credit agreement entered into between the

Company’s customer (the “Customer”, who is independent to the

Company) and another bank (the “Bank”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

26. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES, BANK BALANCES
AND CASH (Cont’d)

Restricted bank balances (Cont’d)

On 29 September and 22 October 2015, the Company formally
received summons sent by the Futian Court on 25 September
2015 and 19 October 2015 respectively, and pursuant to which
the Bank, as the plaintiff, has initiated legal proceedings against
six defendants including the Customer and the Company (the
“Litigation”) in the Futian Court.

In the Litigation, the Bank alleged that the Customer has failed to
meet the margin calls according to the requirements under a credit
agreement, constituting an event of default of such agreement.
The Bank is also entitled to demand the Customer to prematurely
repay all the amount granted under the relevant credit facilities. The
Bank further alleged that the Company did not, as instructed by
the Bank, deliver the vehicles that had not been picked up but paid
by the Customer in full with loan to the warehouse as specified by
the Bank, leading to a breach of the relevant credit agreement, and
should be jointly and severally liable to compensate for the losses it
suffered. The Bank stated that the outstanding credit balances due
from the Customer was RMB80 million in aggregate.

In March 2016, Shenzhen
“Shenzhen Court”) made a final ruling that the Litigation is

Intermediate People’s Court (the

under the jurisdiction of the Shenzhen Court. The two courts are
proceeding the transfer of the Litigation which have not yet been
formally heard.

The Company reviewed all the relevant documents and agreements
in relation to the Litigation and based on the opinion of its PRC
legal adviser, the directors of the Company are of the view that the
alleged liability in the litigation document is lack of factual and legal
evidence and therefore the Company shall not be liable. Accordingly,
no provision for these bank balances has been made in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

27. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's trade, bills and other

payables are as follows:

R-B-1F R-F-NF

+=ZR=+-B +=ZA=t-H

At At

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

ANEETT  ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Trade and bills payables 1,670,646 1,918,313
Selling expenses payables 242,977 228,678
Value added tax payables 24,582 8,600
Other payables 90,047 66,099
Advance from customers 289,519 139,526
2,317,771 2,361,216

At the end of the reporting period, the age of trade and bills

payables of the Group is as follows:

R-B-1F R-T-NE

+ZA=+-B t=A=t-H

At At

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

ANEETT  ARETT

RMB000 RMB’000

Within 3 months 1,501,369 1,260,883
Between 3 to 6 months 155,571 650,293
Between 7 to 12 months 7,496 2,772
QOver 12 months 6,210 4,365
1,670,646 1,918,313
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

27. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)

Included in the balance of trade, bills and other payables at the
end of the reporting period are amounts due to related parties as
follows:

R-B-1F R-F-NF

+=ZR=+-B +=ZA=t-H

At At

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

ANEETT  ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Qingling Isuzu Engine 139,510 189,292
Isuzu 37,144 106,809
Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 12,952 3,060
Qingling Isuzu Sales — 160
Qingling Isuzu Autoparts 1,594 —
Qingling Group 1,620 —
192,720 299,321

These amounts are trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and the
credit period granted on purchases of materials is 3 to 6 months.

The balance of advance from customers at the end of the
reporting period represents the amount received in advance for the
subsequent sales of trucks and vehicles and automobile parts and
accessories.

At the end of the reporting period, trade and other payables
RMB37,722,000 (2014: RMB107,387,000) are
denominated in JPY.

amounted to
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e BB R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-T-AE+-A=+—-ALEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

28. KA 28. SHARE CAPITAL

R-Z-NFE-A—-R>
—2-mE+=A
=t-AR=%-1F
+=A=+-H

At 1 January 2014,

31 December 2014 and
31 December 2015
ANEETT

RMB’000

Hf BERETRER Registered, issued and fully paid 2,482,268

RAEE

Number of shares
R-B-mF-A-H"
—2-mE+=A
=t-AR=F-I1F
+=A=+-H

At 1 January 2014,

31 December 2014 and
31 December 2015
TR

‘000

BREEARBI ARG Shares of RMB1 each
— AR — Domestic shares 1,243,616
—HE — H shares 1,238,652

2,482,268

RERAPBERFE, KT Domestic shares are ordinary shares subscribed for and credited
HRKIHNEREBUARERER as fully paid up in Renminbi by the PRC government and/or entities
ARSI BE M E AR - MHRA established in the PRC. H shares are ordinary shares subscribed for
H B BT & skoR B A B S in Hong Kong Dollar and credited as fully paid up in Renminbi by
B BLAINA T B TR EE KA persons other than the PRC government and/or entities established
ARBEARIGBHENEAR - in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)

Domestic shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with
each other. Domestic shares are not freely traded in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

There were no changes in the registered, issued and fully paid share
capital of the Company during both years.

29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained
profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure from
time to time. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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BE-_T—ARAF+_-_A=+—HILFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
30, £@T H 30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) @I AR (a) Categories of financial instruments

R-Z-1F RIZE-HNF
+=BA=+-B +=A=t+-H

At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

ABETT — AREFIL
RMB'000 RMB'000

SREE Financial assets
EHREKFE Loan and receivables
g 5 W8 Trade receivables 821,649 819,534
Hib e Other receivables 12,096 9,596
EURE Bills receivable 2,060,348 2,748,660
REBMABB=—M@A < HITER Bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months 2,793,293 2,797,786
XRGIRITES  RIOIEHEAS Restricted bank balances,
bank balances and cash 2,262,749 1,133,712
7,950,135 7,509,288
2RER Financial liabilities
BEA Amortised cost
BAEREEMNZE Trade and bills payables 1,670,646 1,918,313
BRHEEER Selling expenses payables 242,977 228,678
H it 8 FROE Other payables 90,047 66,099

2,003,670 2,213,090
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, bills receivable, bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months, restricted bank balances, bank balances
and cash, trade and bills payables, selling expenses payables and
other payables. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and currency risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. There has been no significant change to the
Group’s exposure to these risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures these risks. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i)  Currency risk

Several entities of the Group have foreign currency purchases,
sales, which expose the Group to currency risk. The Group
considers the currency risk insignificant and does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure to currency risk.
The Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign currency rates.
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(b) MBEEREEEEREKE
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BAEREFENERRZ2ERE
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BE JPY
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BREE DM

AEBZITERBREBETR
BEZEEKRS  -EREFFMEE
TTBTREERREBRILIFE
R-BAREIAREHET B
TTRREOBEEIN -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(1) Currency risk (Cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities that are subject to currency
risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

BE af
Assets Liabilities
R-Z-1% R-ZB-0OF R-ZT-1F R-ZF-0OF
tZA=t-8 +=A=t-B t=A=t-8 t=A=1-A

At At At At

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
ANEEFT AEEFT AEEFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
8,748 10,898 — —

17,879 31,779 37,722 107,387

50 1,340 — —

13 1,818 — —

3 3 — —

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuations in USD and
JPY. The management assessed the risks of fluctuations in HKD,
EUR and GBP are insignificant and did not present the sensitivity
analyses in the RMB against HKD, EUR and GBP.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(1) Currency risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
in the exchange rate of RMB against USD and JPY. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the period end for a 5% change in RMB against USD and JPY. A
(negative) positive number below indicates (decrease) increase in
post-tax profit for the year, respectively, where the RMB strengthen
5% against USD and JPY. For a 5% weakening of the RMB against
USD and JPY, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
post-tax profit for the year.

BE-Z2-1% BZE-Z-ME
tT=A=+-A t=A=t+-*H
IEEE LFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
AEEFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

Profit or loss
usb (372) (463)
JPY 843 3213
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(b) MBEEBREEERRKXE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest risk relates preliminary to bank
deposits with original maturity more than three months carried at
fixed interest rates.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of deposit interest rate arising from the Group’s bank
balances carried at variable rate.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to bank balances carried prevailing deposit interest rate
at the end of the reporting period. 0.25% (2014: 0.25%) increase
or decrease in interest rate is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 0.25% higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2015 would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB4,808,000 (2014: increase/decrease by RMB2,409,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
bank balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits
and monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debtors. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debtor at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The credit risk on amounts due from related parties is limited
because the Group also periodically evaluated the related parties’
credit rating and these related parties credit rating is high.

There is concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
parties, which have been disclosed in note 23 and the Group
periodically evaluated the related parties credit rating and also look
for more non-related party customers. Apart from that, the Group
does not have significant concentration of credit risk on other trade
and other receivables, with exposure spread over a number of
counter-parties and customers. The credit risk on liquid fund which
are deposited with several banks is limited because the Group's
bank deposits and bank balances are deposited with authorised
banks in the PRC with high credit-ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on
cash generated from operating activities as a significant source of
liquidity. Trade receivables and bills receivables can be received
within six months based on the earliest date on which the Group
can require payments and bank balances can be drawn on demand.
The directors believe that the Group will have sufficient funds
available to meet its financial obligations in the foreseeable future
based on management working capital forecast.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The following tables detail the Group’'s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.

ESiit]
HR-fEA 123EF  3ERE1E RAREBHAE SFAZEEE
Total Carrying
Less than 1-3 3months undiscounted  amount at
1 month months to1year  cash flows year end
NEETR  AREFT  ABETT  ARETT ARETR
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

At 31 December 2015
Trade and hills payables 653,380 807,527 209,739 1,670,646 1,670,646
Selling expenses payables
and other payables 78,933 77,989 176,102 333,024 333,024
732,313 885,516 385,841 2,003,670 2,003,670
At 31 December 2014
Trade and bills payables 870,996 678,174 369,143 1,918,313 1918313
Selling expenses payables
and other payables 41794 74,429 178,554 204,777 204,777

912,79 752,603 b47,697 2,213,090 2,213,090
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BE-_T—ARAF+_-_A=+—HILFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

30. £@tT A (&) 30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

() AAEE (¢) Fair values

rEBEHESH T EKRIELCHE N The Group has no financial instruments measured at fair value on a
ARBEFE - recurring basis.

AEBSREERTSHRAGEY The fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities
ARBEDERE-—RENZEE are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
RAREREWBEBRSRESN models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

EE -

KANBEERE  ABEHEK AR The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
RAEMBERRLEEZEMEEN financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in
cHBGECEEERAEAREE the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
BE -

3. BEAIRG &t 31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
AEBMBEER BRI RN E23 The Group's related party balances are set out in notes 23 and 27.
527 -
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BE-_ZT—AF+_-_A=+—HILFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
1. MEARS #th(E) 31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)
KEEAN AEEEABFESTET During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions
THRS : with related parties:
(i) EEREEREMEBEATN (i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
X5

BE-2-1F BE-Z-QOF

+=ZB=+-B t=A=t-H

LLFE LLFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

RHEE Types of transactions 2015 2014
ANEETT  ARETT

RMB'000 RMB’000

HEEBTERER Sales of chassis to Qingling Group 1,574,500 1,690,470
HERESBHRAMT Sales of automobile parts and others to:
—EEERBEERAR([ERER] — EBEREEERAF ("Qingling Casting”) 33,271 36,963
—ERERORERERAFA(ERER]) — EERRBEEBERAF (“Qingling Chair’) 14,328 12,299
—EREERERAAEARARA(ERER] — EBRBEREMEARAR
MBEEERAELRZEERLA) (“Qingling Zhuan Yong", formerly known as
EEFRABELEZEBRAR) 9,517 62,039
—ERERERARAFA(ERER]) — BEERER/ABR AT ("Qingling Axle”) 3,076 3277
—ERERBREEROR([ERRE]D — EEERIEEERAF ("Qingling Forging”) 2,603 3,830
—EREERAEERTRBRAA — ERFERSEREHRAERAT
053390 ("Qingling Chassis") 2,521 10,186
—ERRREHARAA(EREN]) — EEERPHARDF ("Qingling Plastics”) 1,288 4,444
—EEERAEMNPRBEERAA — ERRRERNDRRERRAR
([Esc#m]) ("Qingling Jijia") 1,285 4,591
—EEERFRABLA(EREE] — EBERBEARAR
("Qingling Cast Aluminium”) 1,097 2,331
—BREE — Qingling Group 22 13
69,008 139,973
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3. BEAFRS & (H)

(i) HERSERENBLFWN

RAER

REAEBARE
—ERER
—ERER
—BREH
—ERER
—ExR#m
—BRBE
—ERBE
—ER&ER
—BERER
—ER&E

BEAEREXH FEREHE

BEREESXHT
—BRBE
—ERER

REEXHTEREE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(Cont'd)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries

(Cont'd)

Types of transactions

Purchases of automobile parts from:
— Qingling Axle
— Qingling Chassis
— Qingling Plastics
— Qingling Chair
— Qingling Jijia
— Qingling Forging
— Qingling Casting
— Qingling Cast Aluminium
— Qingling Zhuan Yong
— Qingling Group

Rental expenses for renting warehouse to
Qingling Group

Rental expenses for renting equipment to:
— Qingling Forging
— Qingling Group

Service fee expense to Qingling Group

184 B85 R % AR 2 F Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.

BZ-_Z-1f BZ-Z-Mm%§
+=ZA=+-B +=ZA=+-H

LEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
115,931 77,349
79,791 75,495
63,102 68,076
60,451 59,551
55,812 79,981
40,353 45,552
27,696 34,956
10,426 13,348
5,956 7,826

89 1
459,607 462,135
9,614 6,040
19,974 19,974
900 900

4,634 31
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(i) BE+REFTZXS

REER

BEAETHREBH

HERERAMERELNERERERE

i

If

ERTHMHREAMAETHREM

BEMEEER
WREVEE
MEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(Cont'd)

(ii) Transactions with Isuzu

Types of transactions

Purchases of automobile parts and components

Royalties and licence fee paid on sales of trucks
and other vehicles

Sales of accessory sets and other automobile
parts and components

Marketing fee received

Acquisition of intangible assets

Research expenses

(iii)

Types of transactions

Purchases of automobile parts and raw materials
Sales of automobile parts and raw materials
Rental income from leasing equipment
Miscellaneous service income

Rental income for investment properties

Testing service income

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine

2015 2014
ANREFT ANREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
849,186 978,843
18,765 21,379

21,634 22,728

6,447 7,395

— 69,287

— 1,997
BE-E-1f HE-Z-OF
+=A=t-B +=A=t-8
LLFE EFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
ABETT — AREFIL
RMB'000 RMB'000
1,265,395 1,359,493
890,576 734,011
39,077 39,077
1,444 1172
3823 3,823
2,490 3419
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3. BEAFRS & (H)

(iv) BERAT+REENRS

REER

HERERAETHM
HEREMEZ WA
MERBRA

(v) BE+RERRWMRS

REEE

HEREMEZ WA
MERBRA
& R £

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(iv) Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Sales

BE-®-IF BE-ZF-QOF

+=A=+-B +=A=t-H

LFE LFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

Types of transactions 2015 2014
AEEFT ANEEFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Sales of trucks and automobile parts 9,284 5,835
Rental income for investment properties 1,560 1,170
Miscellaneous service income 250 472

(v) Transactions with Isuzu Qingling Engineering

BE-%-1F BE-F-QOF

+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-8H

LLFE ILFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

Types of transactions 2015 2014
AEETT ANEEFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Rental income for investment properties 886 886
Miscellaneous service income 8 752
Sales of raw materials — 11
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(vi) Transactions with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts

BZ-Z-1f BZ-Z-mf§
+=ZA=+-B +=ZA=+-H

LEE ILFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

Types of transactions 2015 2014
ANEETT  ARETT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Sales of automobile parts and raw materials 37,978 26,743
Miscellaneous service income 3,822 1,042

The above transactions with related parties also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are conducted in

accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements.

(vii) Transactions/balances with other government-related
entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government
(“government-related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is
part of a larger group of companies under Qingling Group which is
controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries disclosed in section (i) above,
the Group also conducts businesses with other government-related
entities. The directors of the Company consider those government-
related entities are independent third parties so far as the Group's
business transactions with them are concerned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(vii) Transactions/balances with other government-related
entities in the PRC (Cont’'d)

Material transactions/balances with other government-related
entities are as follow:

BE-2-1F BE-Z-QOF
+=ZB=+-B t=A=t-H
LLFE LLFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
ANEETT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB’000

Trade sales 423,651 470,736

Trade purchases 275,667 400,779

At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

ABETT — AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB'000

Trade and other balances due to
other government-related entities 93,908 113,210

Trade and other balances due from
other government-related entities 245,440 289,087

B #5558 R A PR 2 3 Qingling Motors Co. Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(vii) Transactions/balances with other government-related
entities in the PRC (Cont’'d)

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including utilities services and surcharges/taxes charged by the PRC
government, and deposits and other general banking facilities with
certain banks and financial institutions which are government-related
entities in its ordinary course of business. In view of the nature of
these banking transactions, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that separate disclosure would is not meaningful.

Except as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that transactions with government-related entities are not
significant to the Group’s operations.

(viii) Compensation of directors and key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year are as follows:

BE-%-1F BE-BR-NF

+=ZRA=+-B +=ZA=t-H

LLFE LLFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

AEETT AEETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Short-term benefits 2,867 BrE
Post-employment benefits 245 190
3,112 3,563

Annual Report 2015 £ ¥§



e BB R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T—ARAF+_-_A=+—HILFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

32. KIE 32. COMMITMENTS

MNEERAR  NEB 2 B RFEPE At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
T capital commitments:

RIE-7FE RIZ-HNF
+=B=+-HB t=A=+-H

At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

ABETT — AREFIL
RMB'000 RMB'000

BAHBRARNGATBREBENEAEE + Contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of:

—BREEDE BERR — acquisition of property, plant and equipment 2,144 3,114
—BRkERVEE — acquisition of intangible assets 113,137 =
33. REHEE 33. OPERATING LEASE
REBERABEA The Group as lessee

R=%-1F R=-F-NF
tT=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H

At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

ABETT — AREFIL
RMB'000 RMB'000

FARBEEHENAN 2R EBEFR - Minimum lease payment paid under
operating lease during the year:
ES Premises 16,398 14,584
Fi Equipment 24,270 21,379

40,668 35,963
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

33. OPERATING LEASE (Cont'd)
The Group as lessee (Cont’ d)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

R-B-1F RIZ-Q0OF

+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-H

At At

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

ARETFT ANEEFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

Within one year 39,282 39,197
In the second to fifth year inclusive 4,198 32,985
43,480 72,182

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its warehouses and production facilities. Leases
are negotiated for an average term of one to three years. Some
contracts have been renewed during the reporting period.
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e MKW NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-ZT—AF+-A=1+—HILFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

33. KEHE (A 33. OPERATING LEASE (Cont’d)

AEBEAEEA The Group as lessor

RBEEBEBER  ASBEHRBARF 2 At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
RREFEHEETNAEEOET - tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

RZE-1F RZE-0NF
+=R=+-B +=A=+-H

At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
ARETFT  ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
£/ Within one year 50,189 51,989
FIFEEEE(BEEREME) In the second to fifth year inclusive = 50,189
50,189 102,178
SHEREREETLIHEEFIU The amount represents rentals receivable from Qingling Isuzu
REEZRBRIERT TREH Engine, Qingling Isuzu Sales, Isuzu Qingling Engineering for certain
B ERATHREERATRE of its land and buildings and production facilities.
BHEMAZEZHES -
BRUA BB NEBRHE R Other than the above, the Group does not have any other
IR B EMBE TR BEY commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
¥ BELRERHBEREEDENK cancellable operating leases of property, plant and equipment and

o

BHE 2 KRR REHEE %R

investment property at the end of the reporting period.
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R-ZE—AE+-_A=+—8x%
—E—NNF+_A=+—H K
NEINHBABFEBOT ¢

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014 are as follows:

ARREERED
REEERNEIL
IMRREER EREBER Proportion of
Country of Form of FMER ownership interests
il PN registration business Registered directly held TEER
Name of subsidiary and operation  structure capital by the Company Principal activities
—B-%f —E-mE
2015 2014
BREAR HhE Raiipav 38,166,600% 7T 50.56% 50.56% AEHIESEHHH
Qingling Moulds The PRC Incorporated  US$38,166,600 BA
Production of moulds
for the manufacture
of automobile parts
BB L HhE R av 29,980,000 7T 51% 51% MARRER
Qingling Technical ~ The PRC Incorporated  US$29,980,000 Not yet commenced

Center

FRZEMB QAL AREITEM
BEES

TEMBARNRERERMAE
EEEETHREEERAALE
BEREBE BB BB ARSI

business

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of principal

subsidiaries to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash
dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the Group.
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3. XATMERATDFHFE(E)

TRENAEEHEAEARIFFER
a2 ENB RTINS

Rt HR
TEREHHY
Place of
establishment
WEBARBRE and
Name principal place

of subsidiary of operation

EREA e

Qingling Moulds PRC

BB

Qingling Technical e
Center PRC

ERAAEEERERFEERER
ZEWMBRAZUBERBEHR
FIINT - LU THMBERBMBRE
BARRREHEAMNEER -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Cont'd)

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

FEREEFEZ

FRERERRREAIML

Proportion ownership

AEREFERERNET CHE S

interests and voting

rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
“Z-1% ZE-QNF ZB-IfF ZEB-MOF ZE-1f IZZT-INF
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
% % AEETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
% % RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
49.44 49.44 4,207 3,646 159,680 168,734
49.00 49.00 1,045 503 138,692 137,646
298,372 296,380

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group
is subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarized financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations
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34. XATKMERBFE(E)

RBEE

FRYPEE

mEBAE
NG R UN AL fe

SRS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Cont'd)

Qingling Moulds

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

R-ZE-1F RIE-HNF
+=A=1-8 +=A=1-8
At At

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
318,552 320,899
26,929 27,143
(18,033) (22,081)
165,558 164,806
161,890 161,155
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34. XATKMERBFE(E)

Wit

F
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FEBEEREENRES B8RS

ENFERERR

BEEBZBRERA/(RE)FE
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MEZYZRERLFR

RERACRL)FE8

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Cont'd)

Qingling Moulds (Cont’ d)

Revenue

Expenses

Profit for the year

Profit and total comprehensive income attributable
to the owners of the Company

Profit and total comprehensive income attributable
to the non-controlling interests

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities

Net cash inflow from investing activities

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net cash inflow (outflow)
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BE-Z-1f BE-Z- $
+=B=t+-8 t=A=t-

LEE JJ:fFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

AREFT AEREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

63,234 37,846

(55,149) (30,472)

8,085 7,374

4,088 3,728

3,997 3,646

3,260 4,807

8,483 (1,582)

5,123 6,001

(6,598) (9,730)

7,008 (5,311)
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34. XATKMERBFE(E)

P2 8@ B Al H s

RBEE

RYAE

FEPERE =

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Cont'd)

Qingling Technical Center

Current assets

Current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

RIB-1F RIE-NF
+=RA=+-B +=A=+-H

At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

AREFT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB000

283,316 281,095

(271) (184)
144,353 143,265
138,692 137,646
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e BB R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZEZ—RFE+-_A=1+—HItEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
34, KNP EMEB L BFE(E) 34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Cont’'d)
B8 F A (8]) Qingling Technical Center (Cont’ d)
BZ-_2-1f BZE-%- iE
+=A=+-B t=A=+-
HEE ﬂ:ﬂiE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
ANEETT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

8 WA Interest income 2,884 1,409
F Expenses (751) (383)
FRHEF Profit for the year 2,133 1,026
ARRBEBAEERFRGAE BY R Profit and total comprehensive income attributable
to the owners of the Company 1,611 523
EEREREGRFREABNE Profit and total comprehensive income attributable
to the non-controlling interests 1,045 503
EREERERR Dividends paid to non-controlling interests == =
REEBRIBRERAFE Net cash inflow from operating activities 788 364
REEFB RERACGRL)FE Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities 1,373 (40,008)
BEEZBH RERACRL)FHE Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities = =
BemAGRL)#E Net cash inflow (outflow) 2,161 (39,641)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in an associate
Investments in joint ventures
Bank deposits with original maturity

more than three months

Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables and prepayments
Bills receivables
Prepaid lease payments
Bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months
Restricted bank balances
Bank balances and cash

R-ZE-1F RIE-DNF
+=A=+-B +ZA=1+-H
At At

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
ANREFT ANREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
732,241 902,735
40,795 42,043
34,917 38,318
137,030 150,465
285,073 285,073
6,333 6,333
368,545 315,774
376,308 —
13,744 12,232
1,994,986 1,752,973
765,812 1,025,282
796,512 783,004
2,045,656 2,741,384
1,413 1,383
2,178,425 2,659,013
79,999 —
1,936,829 896,773
7,804,646 8,006,839
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e BB R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZEZ—RFE+-_A=1+—HItEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
3. AREMBERARFEER 35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
(%) RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

RIE-1F RIE-NF
+=ZA=+-B +=ZA=+-H

At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

AREFT — ARETT
RMB'000 RMB000

RBHERE Current liabilities
EANER ENZEREMEMNTE Trade, bills and other payables 2,315,653 2,340,444
BHEER Tax liabilities 18,710 29,951
2,334,363 2,370,395
REHEEFE Net current assets 5,470,283 5,636,444
BEERTBAEE Total assets less current liabilities 7,465,269 7,389,417
BRRREE Capital and reserves
RA Share capital 2,482,268 2,482,268
A% B & Share premium and reserves 4,983,001 4,907,149
BEnEE Total equity 7,465,269 7,389,417
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3. AREMBERARFEER

(%)
AR RERE

BEEEAZRHERR R
XRZE-ZFKRE

RZE-mE+-A=+-H
EERFRBA AN

FEAE
IRZF-NERKE

=

RZZ-AF+-A=+—H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Movement in reserves of the Company

At 1 January 2014

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Appropriation for the year

Unclaimed H shares dividend
of prior year

2013 final dividend paid

At 31 December 2014

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Appropriation for the year

2014 final dividend paid

At 31 December 2015

REEE E4A0RE AELNEE  REEN #ct

Statutory

surplus

Share Capital reserve  Retained

premium reserve fund profits Total
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
1,764,905 572,210 903,029 1,559,181 4,799,325
— — — 430,518 430,518
- - 44,59 (44,596) =
— — — 1 1
= = —  (322695)  (322,695)
1,764,905 572,210 947,625 1,622,409 4,907,149
— — — 473,015 473,015
— - 47,583 (47,583) =
— — —  (397,163)  (397,163)
1,764,905 572,210 995,208 1,650,678 4,983,001
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Reporting Standards

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Revenue

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
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BZ+t-A=t-BLEE

For the Year ended 31 December

Financial summary — in accordance with Hong Kong Financial

“E-hf CZE-NFE ZT-=f T C-E--F§
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
ANBETFr AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFTL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&=5) (&=5)
(restated) (restated)
5,504,296 5,800,078 5,782,887 6,145,756 8,115,200
565,449 522,735 442,253 346,051 413,367
(80,310) (74,037) (64,632) (50,378) (57,217)
485,139 448,698 377,621 295,673 356,150
479,887 444,549 371,681 290,701 353,658
5,252 4,149 5,940 4,972 2,492
485,139 448,698 377,621 295,673 356,150
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Reporting Standards (Cont’d)

Financial summary — in accordance with Hong Kong Financial

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

R+=A=+-H
As at 31 December

“E-1Ff CZE-NE ZE-=f ZE--§f CZB--F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
ANBETFr AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFTL
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

(i &E5!) (s E51)
(restated) (restated)
10,210,173 10,180,560 9,830,454 9,624,656 10,143,706
(2,337,385)  (2,392,488) (2,163,579) (2,083,279) (2,598,211)
7,872,788 7,788,072 7,666,875 7,541,377 7,545,495
7,574,416 7491692 7,369,837 7,246,383 7,253,553
298,372 296,380 297,038 294,994 291,942
7,872,788 7,788,072 7,666,875 7,541,377 7,545,495
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PROPOSAL FOR APPROPRIATION OF
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR OF 2015

In accordance with the pertinent regulations and based on the actual
situation of the Company, the board of directors of the Company
resolved that the proposed appropriation of profit for the year of
2015 be as follows:

1. The appropriation of net profits after taxation shall be: 10% for
Statutory Reserve Fund, 0% for Statutory Public Benefit Fund
(Note 1) and 90% for profit available for distribution.

2. A final dividend of RMBO0.16 per share in cash (Note 2). Subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the annual general
meeting, the proposed final dividend is expected to be paid
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
shareholders of the Company on Wednesday, 29 June 2016.
Further announcement will be made as to the exact form of
payment.

Note: 1. In accordance with the amendment to the Company Law of PRC on
27 October 2005 effective from 1 January 2006, and pursuant to the
Company'’s articles of association and the resolutions of the board
of directors of the Company, the Company decided not to accrue for
Statutory Public Benefit Fund from the year of 2006.

2. According to the regulations of the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Implementation Regulations on Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Notice of
Withholding and Payment of Enterprise Income Tax Regarding China
Resident Enterprise Paying Dividend to Non-Resident Enterprise
Holders of Overseas H Shares issued by China’s State Administration
of Taxation (Guo Shui Han [2008] No. 897 on 6 November 2008),
any China resident enterprise which pays dividend to non-resident
enterprise holders of overseas H shares for the year of 2008 and
subsequent years shall withhold and pay enterprise income tax at a

unified tax rate of 10%.
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PROPOSAL FOR APPROPRIATION OF
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR OF 2015

As stated above, in respect of any non-resident enterprise holders
of H Shares (including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other custodians,
corporate nominees and trustees such as securities companies and
banks, and other entities or organizations) whose names appear
on the Company's register of shareholders on the Record Date of
Dividend, the Company will pay the 2015 final dividend payable to
such shareholders after deducting enterprise income tax payable from
the 2015 final dividend.

In respect of any individual holders of H shares whose names appear
on the Company'’s register of shareholders on the Record Date of
Dividend, the Company will not deduct the enterprise income tax from

the 2015 final dividend which such shareholders have right to receive.

BRAERGERDT Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
—E-RE=A+NH 18 March 2016
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

HE Yong (Chairman)

Keiichiro MAEGAKI (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
GAQ Jianmin

Makoto TANAKA

Naoto HAKAMATA

ZENG Jianjiang (Deputy General Manager)

LI Juxing

Independent Non-executive Directors:
LONG Tao

SONG Xiaojiang

LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni

SUPERVISORS

GUAN Jinming (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
MIN Qing

LEI Bin

COMPANY SECRETARY
responsible for PRC affairs: ZENG Jianjiang
responsible for Hong Kong affairs: TUNG Tat Chiu Michael

AUDIT COMMITTEE

SONG Xiaojiang (Committee Chairman)
LONG Tao

LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
SONG Xiaojiang (Committee Chairman)
HE Yong

LONG Tao

LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
HE Yong (Committee Chairman)
LONG Tao

SONG Xiaojiang

LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni

CORPORATE INFORMATION AVAILABLE AT
Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

LEGAL ADDRESS

1 Xiexing Cun

Zhongliangshan

Jiulongpo District

Chongging

the People's Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suite 4901, 49th Floor

Office Tower, Convention Plaza

1 Harbour Road

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

COMPANY’' S WEBSITE
www.gingling.com.cn

H SHARE REGISTRARS
Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

H SHARE LISTING PLACE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1122
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China, Chongging Branch

Bank of Communications, Chongging Branch

The Commercial and Industrial Bank of China, Chongging Branch
The Commercial and Industrial Bank of China, Zhongliangshan Office

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Chongging Branch

36/F, Deloitte Tower

8 Corporate Avenue

10 Ruitian Road, Yuzhong District

Chongging 400043

the People's Republic of China

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
as to Hong Kong laws:

Tung & Co.

Office 1601, 16/F

LHT Tower

31 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo
26/F, Jardine House

1 Connaught Place
Central, Hong Kong

as to PRC laws:

Haiwen & Partners

20/F Fortune Financial Center
5 Dong San Huan Central Road
Chao Yang District

Beijing 100020

the People's Republic of China
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